
 
 

 
 

 
CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

MEETING PACKET 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MARCH 2014 
03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 1 of 147



WASHINGTON STATE  
CONSERVATION COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 
Best Western Plus Dayton 
507 East Main Street 
Dayton, WA 99328 
 

PRELIMINARY BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 
Thursday, March 20, 2014 

TIME TAB ITEM LEAD ACTION/INFO 
 
9:00 a.m. 

 
 

 
Call to Order 
• Additions/Corrections to agenda items  

 
 
Chair Peters 

 
 

 

15 minutes  Introductions/Tour Discussion All  

 ***********    PUBLIC COMMENT WILL BE ALLOWED PRIOR TO ACTION ITEMS ******** 

5 
minutes 

1 Consent Agenda 
• Approval of the WSCC January 16, 2014 

Business Meeting minutes  
(pgs. 5-27) 
 

 
Chair Peters 

 
Action 

 
 

60 
minutes 

2 
 
 
 

 

Policy/Programs 
• Pierce CD Supervisor Appointment  

(pg. 29) 
  

• OFP Easement Sponsorship (pgs. 30-51) 
• Policy Updates (pgs. 52-88) 

 
Commissioner 
Larry Davis 
 
Josh Giuntoli 
Ron Shultz 

 
Action 
 
 
Action 
Information 

15 minutes               BREAK 

20 
minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

“Washington Grown” Presentation Kara Rowe, WA Association of Wheat 
Growers and Ryan Holterhoff, Potato 
Commission 

35 
minutes 

3 District Operations 
• Regional Manager Report  

 
 

• District Technical Capacity Group 
Update (pgs. 90-96) 

 
Ray Ledgerwood/ 
Larry Brewer 
Ray Ledgerwood 

 
Information 
 
 
Action 

 
12:00 
(30 min) 

  
LUNCH: Please RSVP to the Conservation Commission 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 2 of 147



 

20 
minutes 

 Washington Wildlife Recreation 
Coalition Presentation 

Tom Bugert, Outreach Director 

90 
minutes 

4 Budget 
• Financial Report (pgs. 98-104) 
• Legislative Budget 
• Non Shellfish CD Appeals Update  

(pgs. 105-113) 
• Shellfish Funding (pgs. 114-115) 
• FY15 Operating Allocations 

 
• 2015-2017 Budget Development  

(pgs. 116-118) 

 
Debbie Becker 
Ron Shultz 
Debbie Becker 
 
Ron Shultz 
Mark Clark/Debbie 
Becker 
Mark Clark 

 
Information 
Information 
Action 
 
Information 
Information 
 
Action 

 
10 minutes BREAK 

  

45 
minutes 

5 Commission Operations 
• WACD Resolutions (pgs. 120-147) 

 
• SCC Staffing Update 
• May Commission Planning Meeting 

 
Mark Clark/ Alan 
Stromberger 
Mark Clark 
Mark Clark 

 
Action 
 
Information 
Information 

30 
minutes  

Partner Reports All Agency 
Representatives 

Information 

4:00 pm 
 

Adjourn Chair Peters  

NEXT MEETING:   
 
Conservation District Tour hosted by the Wahkiakum Conservation District will be on May 13, 2014. 
The Conservation Commission Planning Meeting will be on May 14, 2014, and the Conservation 
Commission Regular Business Meeting will be held on May 15, 2014. 
 
Location:    Red Lion Inn Kelso 
                     510 Kelso Drive 
                     Kelso, WA 98626 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 3 of 147



 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 1 
 

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 4 of 147



Washington State Conservation Commission Regular Business Meeting 

DRAFT MINUTES 

SeaTac, Washington 
January 16, 2014 

 
The Washington State Conservation Commission (Commission/WSCC) met in regular session on January 16, 
2014, in SeaTac, Washington. Commissioner Peters called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. 
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT   COMMISSION STAFF PRESENT 
Jim Peters, Chair     Mark Clark, Executive Director 
Clinton O’Keefe, Vice Chair, East Region                    Debbie Becker, Admin. & Finance Director 
Larry Davis, West Region    Ray Ledgerwood, Program Facilitator 
Lynn Brown, Central Region    Ron Shultz, Policy Director 
Lynn Bahrych, Member                                                 Bill Eller, Central WA Regional Manager 
Jim Kropf, WSU-Puyallup    Lori Gonzalez, Administrative Assistant  
George Tuttle, Dept. of Agriculture   Carol Smith, CREP Manager 
Alan Stromberger, WA Association                               Laura Johnson, Communication & Outreach 
of Conservation Districts (WACD)   Aquila Bernard, Fiscal Analyst 
Kelly Susewind, Department of Ecology (DOE) 
 
PARTNERS REPRESENTED AT THIS MEETING 
Roylene Rides-at-the Door, Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) 
Dave Vogel, (WACD) 
Tom Eaton, Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
Steve Landino, (NOAA)  
 
GUESTS ATTENDED 
Roger Wristen, Carolyn Kelly, Jeff Rock, Chris Herron, Glen Weatherford, Joe Florek, John Keatley, J. 
Scott,Walt Edelen, George Boggs, Wendy Pare, Monte Marti, Bill Knutsen, Sherre Copeland, Claire Dykman, 
Don Hatler.  
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Motion by Commissioner O’Keefe to approve the meeting minutes from December 5, 2013. Seconded by 
Commissioner Kropf.  Motion Passed.  
 
Prior to discussion of the upcoming commission action items listed on the business agenda, Chair Peters opened 
up the floor for public comment. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Ms. True is a honey farmer in King County who spoke on the Northwest Indian Fisheries Commission 
(NWIFC) response item listed on the agenda and speaking in regard to the buffer letter submitted from King 
County and provided in the January meeting packets. She advised that the commission can request facts and 
figures from King County, and additional documentation of her comments regarding the King and Whatcom 
study showing smaller buffers can be effective. Many farmers are already complying with buffer widths 
according to local ordinance. Concerned about the relationship between the larger buffers and wildlife impacts 
on food safety. This is a particular concern in Snohomish where they have experienced wildlife impact on crops. 
Commission should address this incompatibility before acting on the request. The proposed wide buffers seem 
to be unrealistic given the nature of the farms in the valleys. (Attachment A) 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 5 of 147



 
John Keatley, speaking for both Cowlitz and Wahkiakum Conservation Districts, and responding to the NWIFC 
response item. Cowlitz CD has worked with landowners for decades. Mr. Keatley suggested using the 
Coordinated Resource Management (CRM) process to open it up to all parties. Mr. Keatley distributed and 
submitted written comments to the Commission (see Attachment B) The Commission needs to spend time 
understanding the economics of the proposal to have mandated or preconditioned buffers. This economic study 
should include a variety of things. Not only the impacts to the farmers and producers, but also the impacts to the 
Commission because this could lead to a spiraling downward of landowner involvement in incentive based 
processes. We would end up with less funding and fewer staff.  Second, the voluntary and cooperative efforts 
are important and need to be maintained and with more funds. The Voluntary Stewardship Program (VSP) is a 
good idea and needs an opportunity to be worked on at a watershed scale. Both CDs recommend the 
Commission to not approve the recommended buffer request. 
 
Joe Florek, Chair, Wahkiakum Conservation District, also spoke on the NWIFC response action agenda item.  
Mr. Florek shared that he has been on the board of supervisors since 1993, and the district is focused on the 
middle valley at Skamokawa. They have 80 participation in the watershed in the ag land (referring to map 
provided) The CD manager has been creative to come up with funding to support projects. This encourages 
landowner participation. The landowners are concerned about farm ground because of flooding. The district had 
to adjust the buffer widths to address this concern. The minimum average is about 50 feet.  
 
The commissioners discussed the letter of the proposed buffers and the allegations submitted by the NWIFC. 
Director Mark Clark recognizes that what has happened with the letter has brought attention of the needed 
communication between agencies and a look at the NRCS Field Office Technical Guide (FOTG). A further look 
will be taken at what can be done to incentives and how to get better results. This continues a better evaluation 
of our programs and how we can improve and get to our common goals.  The Governor would like all of us to 
look at how to make this leaner in regards to communication amongst agencies and partners. 
 
A subcommittee consisting of Commissioners Kelly Susewind, Lynn Bahrych, Larry Davis, and Alan 
Stromberger was created to assist in crafting a letter and finding an approach to implementing the steps 
identified.  Timeline is to get the subcommittee together as soon as possible to provide a response back in early 
March. 
 
Commissioner Bahrych moved to adopt the staff recommendations identified in the memo of January 16, 
2014, and to direct Commission staff to draft a response letter to the NWIFC that includes these steps 
identified. Seconded by Commissioner Davis.  
 
Commissioner Brown moved to amend the motion, to include direct responses to the allegations in the 
subject letter from the NWIFC, including items mentioned in footnotes 1 and 4 and any other direct 
allegations made in the subject letter. Seconded by Commissioner Stromberger. Motion on amendment 
passed. Main motion passed as amended. 
 
Commission Member Policy 
 
Commission staff updated the Commission Member Compensation Policy #14-01 to be consistent with RCW. 
43.03.250.  
 
Commissioner Davis moved to adopt policy #14-01 Commission member compensation to be consistent 
with RCW 43.03.250. Seconded by Commissioner Stromberger.  Motion passed. 
 
 
 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 6 of 147



District Technical Capacity Group 
 
James Weatherford  provided a review of the concept paper on Conservation District Technical Capacity, 
emphasizing that the concepts included are to make a good system of technical services even better through 
training, mentoring, certification and monitoring results.  Mr. Weatherford requested that the Commission 
Members and staff review the paper that is provided in their meeting packets and provide comments to himself, 
Josh Monaghan, or Joe Holtrop. Mr. Weatherford also requested time on the March Commission meeting 
agenda to present the concept paper and budget for the capacity building proposed steps. 
 
Election Proviso Report 
 
Ron Shultz provided an update on the Elections Proviso Report. Due to the length of the legislative session, 
Commission staff was not sure the proviso would appear in the budget until June 30. This reduced the time 
available to complete the report by its deadline of December 10, 2013. Mr. Shultz provided a draft copy in the 
commission meeting packets. Mr. Shultz would like to send the report out for district comment and review. 
Staff will then incorporate comments as appropriate prior to final submittal to the Legislature. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Brown to accept the staff recommendation to transmit the Election Proviso 
report to the Conservation Districts for their review and comment within 60 days. Seconded by 
Commissioner Davis. Motion passed. 
 
Pierce Conservation District Supervisor Appointment 
 
An error occurred during the initial advertisement of the vacant position held by incumbent, David Batker. The 
Commission rescinded the appointment made in December 2013, and asked the Pierce Conservation District to 
re-advertise the vacancy. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Brown to accept the staff recommendation to rescind the appointment of Scott 
Gruber to the Pierce CD and re-open the appointed position for notification and reconsideration at the 
March Commission meeting. Seconded by Commissioner Davis. Motion passed. 
 
Non Shellfish Funding 
 
Information was provided on the amount of funding allocated to districts who submitted their projects into the 
CPDS system prior to the July 1 pull date. All projects that met the criteria were funded. Commission staff 
proposed an appeals process for those districts who called and wrote letters stating they had more projects of 
greater priority in the systemCommissioners agreed to have an appeals committee. They are: Commissioners 
Larry Davis, Clinton O’Keefe, Alan Stromberger and Jim Kropf. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Davis to create a non-shellfish funding appeal subcommittee to vet appeals of 
funding denial decisions and bring back recommendations to the March Commission meeting. 
Commissioner Brown seconded. Motion passed.  
 
Motion by Commissioner O’Keefe to approve the appeals process as follows:  
The appeals process will include the following steps: 
 Notification to the conservation district by the executive director of why the practice was denied. 
 Provide an opportunity for the conservation district to appeal the decision.  
 The appeal may be in person or via telephone by a supervisor and staff. The appeal time limit is 

10 minutes.  
 The subcommittee appealed decisions will be presented to the CC for final action at the March 

Commission meeting. 
 Appeals decisions will be made in writing to the CD after the March Commission meeting. 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 7 of 147



 
Any appeal of a practice entered after July 1, 2013, must meet the following criteria: 
 Was the practice one the subcommittee reviewed and did not approve? 
 Is there a subsequent letter to the Commission asking for consideration of the practice? 
 Appeals of practices entered after July 1, must have approved practices approved within the pre-

July 1 criteria to trade. 
 
All notifications of decision on practices will be mailed by February 1, 2014.  The appeals hearing would 
be held in advance of the March 2014 Commission meeting with a full report provided on March 20, 
2014.  Commissioner Davis seconded. Motion passed. 
 
WACD Resolutions RE: Budget Development 
 
Commissioner Stromberger, President of the Washington Association of Conservation Districts (WACD) 
brought forward the WACD resolutions that passed at their annual December meeting. 18 resolutions included 
the Conservation Commission. Four of those resolutions related to the budget development process which was 
discussed and the following motions were made:  
 
Motion by Commissioner Brown to work on a way to implement the recommendation of the WACD 
resolution 2013-08. Commissioner Stromberger seconded. Motion passed. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Davis that the WSCC establish a budget development process that has a clear 
linkage between the bullets identified within the recommendations of the WACD resolution 2013-15. 
Seconded by Commissioner Brown.  Motion passed. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Brown to pursue the spirit of WACD resolution 2013-16 in the budget and 
allocation process. Commissioner O’Keefe seconded. Motion passed. Four yes and three nay vote. 
 
Motion by Commissioner O’Keefe to pursue the spirit of the recommendations of WACD Resolution 
2013-20. Seconded by Commissioner Brown. Motion passed.  
 
WACD Tribal Outreach Task Force 
 
Commissioner Larry Davis serves as a member of the WACD Tribal Outreach Task Force. The Conservation 
Commission voted to have Mr. Davis serve as a representative of the Conservation Commission. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Brown to appoint Larry Davis to represent the Commission on the WACD 
Tribal Outreach Task Force and bring back information to the Commission. Commissioner Stromberger 
seconded. Motion passed. 
 
Chair Peters adjourned the meeting at 3:36 p.m. 
 

Written comments were submitted for the official minutes 

Attachment A: Christie True 
Attachment B: Joe Florek and John Keatley, Wahkiakum and Cowlitz Conservation District 
Attachment C: Monte Marti, Snohomish Conservation District 
Attachment D: Carolyn Kelly, Skagit Conservation District 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 8 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 9 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 10 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 11 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 12 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 13 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 14 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 15 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 16 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 17 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 18 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 19 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 20 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 21 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 22 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 23 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 24 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 25 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 26 of 147



03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 27 of 147



 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 2 
 

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 28 of 147



 

March 20, 2014 
 
TO:  Conservation Commission Members 
  Mark Clark, Executive Director 
 
FROM: Lori Gonzalez, Administrative Assistant 
 
RE:  Mid-term appointment for Pierce Conservation District Supervisor 
 

Summary: The Conservation Commission has received two applications for the vacant 
appointed supervisor position to serve on the Pierce Conservation District Board of Supervisors. 
This appointment will carry out the remainder of the incumbent, Mr. David Batker's term to May 
2016.  

These two applications have been vetted by the Department of Ecology, Department of 
Agriculture, Area Commission Representative, and the Chair of the conservation district. 

Action Requested:  Approval by the Commission to appoint the applicant as recommended by 
the Commission Area Representative, to the Pierce Conservation District.  

District Applicant Incumbent Area Commission 
Representative 

Pierce 1. Robert J. Hill 
2. Scott Gruber David Batker Commissioner Larry Davis, 

Western Region  

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 29 of 147



 

 
 

March 4, 2014 
 
TO: Conservation Commission Members 
 Mark Clark, Executive Director 
 
FROM: Ron Shultz, Policy Director 
 Josh Giuntoli, Office of Farmland Preservation 
 
SUBJECT: Agricultural Conservation Easement Sponsorship – EKCD Kelley 

 
Summary:  The Conservation Commission has received a request from the Eastern 
Klickitat Conservation District to sponsor an application to the Washington Wildlife and 
Recreation Program Farmland Preservation category for protection of 6,287 acres of a 
viable livestock operation in Klickitat County. 

This MEMO is presented to the State Conservation Commission for review and 
comment. 

Action Requested:  Seeking Commission comment prior to Executive Director action. 

Staff Contacts:   Josh Giuntoli (360) 407-7474   jgiuntoli@scc.wa.gov 

Attachments: 

• Project area photos 
• Map of project area and adjacent area 

Description 

The Eastern Klickitat Conservation District (EKCD) has submitted to the Office of 
Farmland Preservation a request for sponsorship worksheet seeking SCC sponsorship 
of a grant to the Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program Farmland Preservation 
Category.  The purpose of this project is preserving in perpetuity the agricultural 
conservation easement values of the Kelley property. 

The goal of the project is protection of 6,287 acres of a viable large acreage rangeland 
grazing operation in Klickitat County through the use of an agricultural conservation 
easement.  The easement will protect in perpetuity the properties agricultural values.   
Protecting this property will have the dual benefit of protecting nearly the entire 
Chapman Creek Watershed contributing to improved water quality and habitat 
protection. 

Staff with the Office of Farmland Preservation have reviewed the easement worksheet 
and evaluated the project on the four SCC farmland priorities: farm viability, 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 30 of 147



 

 
 

March 4, 2014 
 
TO: Conservation Commission Members 
 Mark Clark, Executive Director 
 
FROM: Ron Shultz, Policy Director 
 Josh Giuntoli, Office of Farmland Preservation 
 
SUBJECT: Agricultural Conservation Easement Sponsorship – EKCD Imrie 

 
Summary:  The Conservation Commission has received a request from the Eastern 
Klickitat Conservation District to sponsor an application to the Washington Wildlife and 
Recreation Program Farmland Preservation category for protection of 13,400 acres of a 
viable livestock operation in Klickitat County. 

This MEMO is presented to the State Conservation Commission for review and 
comment. 

Action Requested:  Seeking Commission comment prior to Executive Director action. 

Staff Contacts:   Josh Giuntoli (360) 407-7474   jgiuntoli@scc.wa.gov 

Attachments: 

• Project area photos 
• Map of project area and adjacent area 

Description 

The Eastern Klickitat Conservation District (EKCD) has submitted to the Office of 
Farmland Preservation a request for sponsorship worksheet seeking SCC sponsorship 
of a grant to the Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program Farmland Preservation 
Category.  The purpose of this project is preserving in perpetuity the agricultural 
conservation easement values of the Imrie property. 

The goal of the project is protection of 13,400 acres of a viable large acreage rangeland 
grazing operation in Klickitat County through the use of an agricultural conservation 
easement.  The easement will protect in perpetuity the properties agricultural values.   
Protecting this property will have the dual benefit of protecting key habitat and identified 
species of concern in the Rock Creek Watershed.  

Staff with the Office of Farmland Preservation have reviewed the easement worksheet 
and evaluated the project on the four SCC farmland priorities: farm viability, 
development pressures, environmental benefits, and fit of the farm to the geographic 
region. 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 31 of 147



After reviewing the worksheet, meeting directly with the Board, communicating directly 
with the landowner, and discussing the project with other state agencies, the Office of 
Farmland Preservation recommends this project be considered for funding in the 2014 
funding cycle and that SCC partner together with EKCD to protect this property in 
perpetuity.    

Project Background 

Acres - 13,400 (12,400 upland, 1,000 riparian) 

Estimated Project Cost - $3.8 million (Recently appraised at $7.6m, assuming a 50% 
reduction) 

Legislative District – 14 

Partner – Eastern Klickitat Conservation District 

The EKCD Board of Supervisors (Board) has made a determination to co-hold in 
perpetuity an agricultural conservation easement on the described project.  The Board 
has made farmland preservation in the project area their number one priority in the 
district long range plan.   

Landowner Interest – Mr. and Mrs. Roscoe Imrie are interested EKCD constituents 

Evaluation 

Mr. and Mrs. Roscoe Imrie are landowners in the Eastern Klickitat Conservation District 
Service area.  The Imrie’s have operated as a livestock operation in the Rock Creek 
Watershed for 50 years.  They currently own and manage 13,400 acres, covered under 
a Grazing Management Plan developed by NRCS. 

Wishing to retire, he has leased the property and sold his cattle to his neighbor who will 
continue the tradition. They recognize the value of preserving in perpetuity this keystone 
rangeland operation for future generations.   

The Imrie’s have participated in past conservation projects with EKCD and have 
indicated a willingness to allow for EKCD to continue pursuing projects to enhance 
water quality and fish habitat.  

Farm Viability - The land is very well suited to the type of livestock operation common 
in the semi arid portion of Klickitat County.  Preserving this farm is expected to yield an 
annual economic input of over $375,000 to Klickitat County.  The landowner also 
receives revenues during the non cattle periods through hunting access fees.  This is a 
recognized diversification of farmland properties that can keep farms intact and provide 
alternative incomes.  The property area also is identified as a key location for wind 
mitigation efforts in response to wind development in the Columbia River area. 

The property contains the necessary infrastructure to support a viable cattle operation 
including spring development, off site watering, fencing, holding areas, scale and scope 
of size, and excellent access to roads. 

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 32 of 147



Development Pressures – While not near a dense population core, the property is at 
risk to convert to non-agricultural values.  Despite the rural nature, the property includes 
Rural Residential 2 zoning which allows for 2 acre parcels to be developed.  
Development has taken place in the adjacent area.  This development contributes to the 
fragmentation of parcels, further limiting viable continued agricultural uses.  To the east 
of the project area is contiguous grazing lands in other ownership.  This property is 
contiguous with the 6,287 acre Kelley Easement also proposed for WWRP FPP in 2014 
by the same sponsors/partners.  The Bickleton Highway transects the project area 
contributing to easy access and denser zoning capacities to the west and south west of 
the project area.  To the south is Yakama Nation trust lands.  This is a key piece to 
protect the overall watershed from further development and fragmentation.  

Environmental Benefits – The project area provides significant benefits to the 
environment.  Key resource concerns in this watershed include water quality and habitat 
availability. This property includes a significant portion of the Rock Creek watershed, 
with 5.7 miles of Rock Creek included in the project area, as well as 4.4 miles of Squaw 
Creek and 0.5 miles of Luna Gulch, all of which are critical to salmonid spawning and 
rearing.  The managed upland and riparian areas  benefit many habitat and wildlife 
values including ESA listed steelhead, Chinook, western gray squirrels, Lewis's and 
white-headed woodpeckers, mule and black tail deer, black-tailed jack rabbit, burrowing 
owl, flamulated owl, golden eagles, western toad, white oak, shrub-steppe, and white 
alder.  The property also provides valuable upper watershed protection, vistas, and 
hunting/recreational opportunities all of which have economic benefits for the local 
community and Klickitat County.    

This property is contiguous with the 6,287 acre Kelley Easement also proposed for 
WWRP FPP in 2014 by the same sponsors/partners. 

Fit of Farm to Geographic Region - Eastern Klickitat is predominantly livestock 
grazing with a diverse climate which contributes to excellent forage and capacity.  The 
land is well managed which benefits a healthy livestock operation as well as a healthy 
environment.  Grazing is a tradition in this area with younger operators interested in 
expanding their presence in the market.  The property’s significant environmental 
considerations are key contributors to the Rock Creek Watershed health.  

This property is contiguous with the 6,287 acre Kelley Easement also proposed for 
WWRP FPP in 2014 by the same sponsors/partners. 

Recommendation 

The Office of Farmland Preservation recommends to the Executive Director of the State 
Conservation Commission that we partner with EKCD on a grant request to the 
Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program Farmland Preservation category for 
protection of this key 13,400 acre livestock operation in Klickitat County, Washington. 

  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 33 of 147



 

Imrie Property, Rock Creek Watershed 

  

Imrie Property, Rock Creek          Looking north into Rock Creek Watershed 

 

 

 

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 34 of 147



 

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 35 of 147



development pressures, environmental benefits, and fit of the farm to the geographic 
region. 

After reviewing the worksheet, meeting directly with the Board, communicating directly 
with the landowner, and discussing the project with other state agencies, the Office of 
Farmland Preservation recommends this project be considered for funding in the 2014 
funding cycle and that SCC partner together with EKCD to protect this property in 
perpetuity.    

Project Background 

Acres – 6,287 acres 

Estimated Project Cost - Awaiting final determination 

Legislative District – 14 

Partner – Eastern Klickitat Conservation District 

The EKCD Board of Supervisors (Board) has made a determination to co-hold in 
perpetuity an agricultural conservation easement on the described project.  The Board 
has made farmland preservation in the project area the number one priority in the 
district long range plan.   

Landowner Interest – Mr. and Mrs. Mike Kelley are interested EKCD constituents 

Evaluation 

Mr. and Mrs. Mike Kelley are cattle ranchers in the Eastern Klickitat Conservation 
District Service area.  Mr. Kelley took over the operation from his father in the late 
1960's.  It is now a successful cattle operation with managed grazing and is managed 
for habitat as well as livestock. 

They currently own 6,287 acres covered under a Grazing Management Plan developed 
by NRCS.   

The Kelley’s recognize the value of preserving in perpetuity this keystone rangeland 
operation for future generations.    

The Kelley’s have participated in past conservation projects with EKCD and have 
indicated a willingness to allow for EKCD to continue pursuing projects to enhance 
conservation values.  

Farm Viability - The land is very well suited to the type of livestock operation common 
in the semi arid portion of Klickitat County.  The Property contains several features that 
make it valuable farmland.  These features include open forested uplands suitable for 
grazing, improved springs for livestock utilization, offsite watering, fencing to create 
pastures for necessary management, scale and scope of property size, topographic 
features, and a diversity of grass species and forbs. 

Preserving this farm is expected to yield an annual economic input of over $275,000 to 
Klickitat County.  The landowner also receives revenues through the production of 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 36 of 147



commercial wind power.  This is a recognized diversification of farmland properties that 
can keep farms intact and provide alternative incomes.  

Development Pressures – While not near a dense population core, the property is at 
risk to convert to non-agricultural values.   Despite the rural nature, 75% of the farm is 
zoned Rural Residential 2 (RR2) which allows for 2 acre parcels to be developed.  The 
north 1,842 acres are zoned extensive agriculture, which allows for minimum 20 acre 
parcels to be developed.  The lower 4,445 acres are zoned RR2.  Extensive agriculture 
is to the north and northeast, RR2 on the west, east and south. 

Environmental Benefits – The project area provides significant benefits to the 
environment.  Key resource concerns in this watershed include water quality and habitat 
availability. This property includes 6.7 miles of Chapman Creek and nearly the entire 
upper Chapman Creek watershed and a portion of the Rock Creek Watershed providing 
water quality protections.  WDFW has identified several areas of habitat for endangered 
or threatened species on this and the adjacent property.  It supports a variety of state, 
federal and candidate listed species. In the Rock Creek portion, it supports Priority 
Habitats and Species (PHS) including steelhead, and chinook. The Chapman Creek 
portion includes western gray squirrels, Lewis's and white-headed woodpeckers, mule 
and black tailed deer, black-tailed jack rabbit, burrowing owl, flamulated owl, golden 
eagles, western toad, white oak, riparian, shrub-steppe, white alder, etc.  

This property is contiguous with the 13,400 acre Imrie Easement also proposed for 
WWRP FPP in 2014 by the same sponsors/partners. 

Fit of Farm to Geographic Region - Eastern Klickitat is predominantly livestock 
grazing with a diverse climate which contributes to excellent forage and capacity.  The 
land is well managed which benefits a healthy livestock operation as well as a healthy 
environment.  Grazing is a tradition in this area with younger operators interested in 
expanding their presence in the market.  The property’s significant environmental 
considerations are key contributors to the Chapman Creek Watershed health.  

This property is contiguous with the 13,400 acre Imrie Easement also proposed for 
WWRP FPP in 2014 by the same sponsors/partners. 

Recommendation 

The Office of Farmland Preservation recommends to the Executive Director of the State 
Conservation Commission that we partner with EKCD on a grant request to the 
Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program Farmland Preservation category for 
protection of this key 6,287 acre livestock operation in Klickitat County, Washington. 

 

  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 37 of 147



 

 

 

Looking North into Chapman Creek Watershed 

  

Chapman Creek (l) and entrance to Kelley Ranch (R) 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 38 of 147



 

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 39 of 147



 

 
 

March 7, 2014 
 
TO: Conservation Commission Members 
 Mark Clark, Executive Director 
 
FROM: Ron Shultz, Policy Director 
 Josh Giuntoli, Office of Farmland Preservation 
 
SUBJECT: Agricultural Conservation Easement Sponsorship – NYCD Stevenson 

 
Summary:  The Conservation Commission has received a request from the North 
Yakima Conservation District to sponsor an application to the Washington Wildlife and 
Recreation Program Farmland Preservation category for protection of 91.82 acres of 
irrigated cropland in Yakima County. 

This MEMO is presented to the State Conservation Commission for review and 
comment. 

Action Requested:  Seeking Commission comment prior to Executive Director action. 

Staff Contacts:   Josh Giuntoli (360) 407-7474   jgiuntoli@scc.wa.gov 

Attachments: 

• Project area photos 
• Map of project area and adjacent area 

Description 

The North Yakima Conservation District has submitted to the Office of Farmland 
Preservation a request for sponsorship worksheet seeking SCC sponsorship of a grant 
to the Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program Farmland Preservation Category.  
The purpose of this project is preserving in perpetuity the agricultural conservation 
easement values of the Stevenson property. 

The goal of the project is protection of 91.82 acres of irrigated farmland in Yakima 
County through the use of an agricultural conservation easement. This project is 
contiguous to the 370 acre Lust Farm & Ranch Preservation Project, also proposed to 
SCC for sponsorship.  Combined, these two projects would protect nearly 500 
contiguous acres in the Cowiche Valley. 

This project is very accessible to the City of Yakima and the communities of Cowiche 
and Tieton.  Combined, these two projects represent a large portion of the Cowiche 
Valley and Cowiche Creek which intersects both project areas.   Protecting this property 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 40 of 147



will have the dual benefit of protecting these viable farm operations from fragmentation 
and protecting listed steelhead and bull trout in Cowiche Creek. 

Staff with the Office of Farmland Preservation has reviewed the easement worksheet, 
toured the subject property and evaluated the project on the four SCC farmland 
priorities: farm viability, development pressures, environmental benefits, and fit of the 
farm to the geographic region. 

After reviewing the worksheet and touring the project area, the Office of Farmland 
Preservation recommends this project be considered for funding in the 2014 funding 
cycle and that SCC partner together with NYCD to protect this property in perpetuity.    

Project Background 

Acres – 91.82 acres 

Estimated Project Cost - Awaiting final determination 

Legislative District – 14 

Partner – North Yakima Conservation District 

The NYCD Board of Supervisors (Board) are scheduled to make a final determination to 
co-hold in perpetuity an agricultural conservation easement on the described project at 
their March board meeting.   

Landowner Interest – Mr. and Mrs. Eugene Stevenson are interested NYCD 
constituents 

Evaluation 

Mr. and Mrs. Stevenson are the current landowners who wish to retire the development 
rights and preserve the land for future agricultural availability.  Selling the development 
rights is a strategy to provide for retirement and ensure continued agricultural 
production.  The family intends to maintain ownership through a trust which will provide 
long-term income to family heirs through farm rental. 

The land was some of the first settled and irrigated land in the upper Yakima area.  
While the current owners have not farmed the property for several years, it has had a 
long term lease due to its desirable attributes for the local farming community. The soils 
are excellent and produce high quality forage with four cuttings of high value hay 
annually.  

The property is situated adjacent to a highly trafficked main arterial linking the City of 
Yakima with the agricultural communities of Cowiche and Tieton. The surrounding area 
includes a mix of intensive agriculture and new home construction. New homes are 
being constructed on surrounding view lots with smaller acreages being converted from 
irrigated agriculture to homes and hobby farms.   

Farm Viability - The land is very well suited to the type of cropping operation common 
in this irrigated portion of Yakima County.  The Property contains several features that 
make it valuable farmland.  These features include a valid senior water right from the 
Tieton River, the necessary water conveyance infrastructure, excellent access to main 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 41 of 147



transportation corridors, and proximity to other similarly irrigated pasture, orchards and 
berry operations.   

The water right was recently issued and confirmed by the Department of Ecology as a 
result of trusting the farms original "senior" water right from Cowiche Creek to the States 
Water Trust Program to benefit the high priority Salmon recovery efforts within the 
Cowiche Watershed (364 ac-ft or approximately 1.89 cfs). 

In the 2011 Yakima County farmland preservation technical assistance grant final report 
submitted to OFP, the four most important attributes of farmland in Yakima County 
identified by surveyed farmers included soil type, geography, neighboring uses, and 
availability of irrigation.  This project area includes highly rated soils, level ground for 
crops, located in an agricultural area, and secure irrigation rights. 

Protection of this property, along with the neighboring Lust Family Farm, will ensure this 
area will not see the agricultural characteristics diminished or lessened.  The scope and 
scale of the project area is consistent with the necessary land base to have a viable 
irrigated operation. 

Development Pressures – The property is zoned "agriculture" which is a one house 
per 40 acres type zoning with several caveats.   However, several parcels of the farm 
abut "Valley Rural" zoning which allows one home in 10 acres and could be "petitioned" 
in due to the zoning criteria of that designation.   

In the 2011 Yakima County farmland preservation technical assistance grant final report 
submitted to OFP, fragmentation of farmland was seen as the largest threat to farmland 
in the county.  The median size farm in Yakima County declined from 24 acres in 2002 
to 20 acres in 2007.  The decrease in median size is in direct relation to a higher 
number of small lots created within the agricultural zone.   

Immediately surrounding the project area are new homes being constructed on view lots 
with smaller acreages being converted from irrigated agriculture to homes and hobby 
farms.   The accessibility to the surrounding communities makes this property highly 
desirable with the character of the area transitioning towards hobby farms.   

A recent look at Yakima County hearing examiner petitions revealed short plat 
subdivision applications on land zoned Agriculture and non agricultural use applications 
for activities on land zoned Agriculture.   

Protection of this property, along with the neighboring Lust Family Farm, will ensure this 
area will not see the agricultural characteristics diminished or lessened.  Protection will 
also build an agricultural buffer between rural residential and intensive agriculture.  

Environmental Benefits – The project area provides significant benefits to the 
environment. The farm envelope contains 2,220 feet of Cowiche Creek, a high priority 
tributary to salmon recovery within the Yakima River Basin.  Floodplain activity is an 
important habitat value of the property and does not affect its farming activities.  The 
farm is within a functioning floodplain and surrounding the irrigated area is large tracts 
of steppe-shrub habitat. 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 42 of 147



 Key resource concerns in this watershed include water quality and habitat availability in 
Cowiche Creek.  The area is listed as a part of the Yakima Basin Steelhead and bull 
trout recovery plan and the NYCD Annual and 5-Year Plans. 

The landowners have been active participants in conservation programs offered by 
NYCD.  Recently, the Irrigation Efficiency program was utilized to provide new 
pressurized delivery system while placing their entire Cowiche Creek water right into the 
state trust water program to enhance steelhead and salmon recovery efforts in the 
Cowiche watershed.  

Also the landowners are currently working with NYCD to address water quality 
impairments that include buffering to reduce temperature and sedimentation issues and 
develop off-stream watering facilities for livestock.   

The farm was served by a series of diversion points off of Cowiche Creek.   These 
diversion points (fish passage barriers and un-screened diversions) have been 
eliminated.   The "senior " water rights associated with these diversions have been 
placed into the State's Trust Water Program for in stream flow benefits (while new water 
rights have been granted from the Tieton River, granted as a result of consensus by 
Yakama Nation, USFWS, WDFW, NMFS and DOE because of the greater 
environmental benefit for salmon recovery within the Yakima River Basin). 

This property is contiguous with the 370 acre Lust Farm & Ranch Preservation Project 
also proposed for WWRP FPP in 2014 by the same sponsors/partners. 

Fit of Farm to Geographic Region – This area of Yakima County is predominantly 
intensive orchard and pasture ground mixed with hobby farms which are typically small 
pasture operations.  The land possesses the necessary market, infrastructure, and 
agricultural support services with the surrounding parcel sizes and land uses both 
complimenting long term agriculture and well suited to fragmentation.  

The land is well managed which benefits a healthy hay/pasture operation as well as a 
healthy environment.  The property’s environmental considerations are key contributors 
to the Cowiche Creek Watershed health.  

This property is contiguous with the 370 acre Lust Farm & Ranch Preservation Project 
also proposed for WWRP FPP in 2014 by the same sponsors/partners. 

Recommendation 

The Office of Farmland Preservation recommends to the Executive Director of the State 
Conservation Commission that we partner with NYCD on a grant request to the 
Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program Farmland Preservation category for 
protection of this key 91.82 acre cropland in Yakima County, Washington. 

 

  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 43 of 147



 

 

 

Looking west into Upper Cowiche watershed from N. Pioneer Way 

  

(L) looking south towards Summitview Extension (R) Looking NE from N. Pioneer Way 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 44 of 147



 

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 45 of 147



 

 
 

March 7, 2014 
 
TO: Conservation Commission Members 
 Mark Clark, Executive Director 
 
FROM: Ron Shultz, Policy Director 
 Josh Giuntoli, Office of Farmland Preservation 
 
SUBJECT: Agricultural Conservation Easement Sponsorship – NYCD Lust 

 
Summary:  The Conservation Commission has received a request from the North 
Yakima Conservation District to sponsor an application to the Washington Wildlife and 
Recreation Program Farmland Preservation category for protection of 370 acres of 
irrigated cropland in Yakima County. 

This MEMO is presented to the State Conservation Commission for review and 
comment. 

Action Requested:  Seeking Commission comment prior to Executive Director action. 

Staff Contacts:   Josh Giuntoli (360) 407-7474   jgiuntoli@scc.wa.gov 

Attachments: 

• Project area photos 
• Map of project area and adjacent area 

Description 

The North Yakima Conservation District has submitted to the Office of Farmland 
Preservation a request for sponsorship worksheet seeking SCC grant sponsorship to 
the Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program Farmland Preservation Category.   

The purpose of this project is preserving in perpetuity the agricultural values of the Lust 
Family property. 

The goal of the project is protection of 370 acres of irrigated farmland in Yakima County 
through the use of an agricultural conservation easement. This project is contiguous to 
the 91.82 acre Stevenson Farm & Ranch Preservation Project, also proposed to SCC 
for sponsorship.  Combined, these two projects would protect nearly 500 contiguous 
acres in the Cowiche Valley. 

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 46 of 147



Staff with the Office of Farmland Preservation has reviewed the easement worksheet, 
toured the subject property and evaluated the project on the four SCC farmland 
priorities: farm viability, development pressures, environmental benefits, and fit of the 
farm to the geographic region. 

After reviewing the worksheet and touring the project area, the Office of Farmland 
Preservation recommends this project be considered for funding in the 2014 funding 
cycle and that SCC partner with NYCD to protect the agricultural values of this property 
in perpetuity.    

Project Background 

Acres – 370 acres 

Estimated Project Cost - Awaiting final determination 

Legislative District – 14 

Partner – North Yakima Conservation District 

The NYCD Board of Supervisors (Board) are scheduled to make a final determination to 
co-hold in perpetuity an agricultural conservation easement on the described project at 
their March board meeting. 

Landowner Interest – The Lust Family are interested NYCD constituents 

Evaluation 

The Lust Family are current landowners of several contiguous parcels in the Cowiche 
Valley. The property has been in the family for nearly 100 years.  The family wishes to 
retire the development rights and with those rights retired, sell the farm to the next 
generation of family members.  Selling the development rights is a strategy to provide 
for retirement and add to affordability considerations of the next generation of family 
farmers.   

The land was some of the first settled and irrigated land in the upper Yakima area.  
While the current owners have not farmed the property for several years, it has had a 
long term lease due to its desirable attributes for the local farming community. The soils 
are excellent and produce high quality forage with four cuttings of high value hay 
annually.  

The property is situated adjacent to a highly trafficked main arterial linking the City of 
Yakima with the agricultural communities of Cowiche and Tieton. The surrounding area 
includes a mix of intensive agriculture and new home construction. New homes are 
being constructed on surrounding view lots with smaller acreages being converted from 
irrigated agriculture to homes and hobby farms.   

Farm Viability - The land is very well suited to the type of cropping operation common 
in this irrigated portion of Yakima County.  The Property contains several features that 
make it valuable farmland.  These features include a valid senior water right from the 
Tieton River, an upgraded pressurized water conveyance system, irrigation delivery 
equipment, excellent access to main transportation corridors, and proximity to other 
similarly irrigated pasture, orchards and berry operations.   

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 47 of 147



The water right was recently issued and confirmed by the Department of Ecology as a 
result of trusting the farms original "senior" water right from Cowiche Creek to the States 
Water Trust Program to benefit the high priority Salmon recovery efforts within the 
Cowiche Watershed (981 ac-ft or approximately 5.15 cfs). 

In the 2011 Yakima County farmland preservation technical assistance grant final report 
submitted to OFP, the four most important attributes of farmland in Yakima County 
identified by surveyed farmers included soil type, geography, neighboring uses, and 
availability of irrigation.  This project area includes highly rated soils, level ground for 
crops, located in an agricultural area with development occurring all around, and secure 
irrigation rights. 

Protection of this property, along with the neighboring Stevenson Family Farm, will 
ensure this area will not see the agricultural characteristics diminished or lessened.  The 
scope and scale of the project area is consistent with the necessary land base to have a 
viable irrigated operation. 

Development Pressures – The property is zoned "agriculture" which is a one house 
per 40 acres type zoning with several caveats.   However, several parcels of the farm 
abut "Valley Rural" zoning which allows one home in 10 acres and could be "petitioned" 
in due to the zoning criteria of that designation.   

In the 2011 Yakima County farmland preservation technical assistance grant final report 
submitted to OFP, fragmentation of farmland was seen as the largest threat to farmland 
in the county.  The median size farm in Yakima County declined from 24 acres in 2002 
to 20 acres in 2007.  The decrease in median size is in direct relation to a higher 
number of small lots created within the agricultural zone.   

Immediately surrounding the project area are new homes being constructed on view lots 
with smaller acreages being converted from irrigated agriculture to homes and hobby 
farms.   The accessibility to the surrounding communities makes this property highly 
desirable with the character of the area transitioning towards hobby farms.   

A recent look at Yakima County hearing examiner petitions revealed short plat 
subdivision applications on land zoned Agriculture and non agricultural use applications 
for activities on land zoned Agriculture.   

Protection of this property, along with the neighboring Stevenson Family Farm, will 
ensure this area will not see the agricultural characteristics diminished or lessened.  
Protection will also build an agricultural buffer between rural residential and intensive 
agriculture.  

Environmental Benefits – The project area provides significant benefits to the 
environment. The farm envelope contains 3,250 feet of Cowiche Creek, a high priority 
tributary to salmon recovery within the Yakima River Basin.  Floodplain activity is an 
important habitat value of the property and does not affect its farming activities.  The 
farm is within a functioning floodplain and surrounding the irrigated area is large tracts 
of steppe-shrub habitat. 

Key resource concerns in this watershed include water quality and habitat availability in 
Cowiche Creek.  The area is listed as a part of the Yakima Basin Steelhead and bull 
trout recovery plan and the NYCD Annual and 5-Year Plans. 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 48 of 147



The landowners have been active participants in conservation programs offered by 
NYCD.  Recently, the Irrigation Efficiency program was utilized to provide new 
pressurized delivery system while placing their entire Cowiche Creek water right into the 
state trust water program to enhance steelhead and salmon recovery efforts in the 
Cowiche watershed.  

Also the landowners are currently working with NYCD to address water quality 
impairments that include buffering to reduce temperature and sedimentation issues and 
develop off-stream watering facilities for livestock.   

The farm was served by a series of diversion points off of Cowiche Creek.   These 
diversion points (fish passage barriers and un-screened diversions) have been 
eliminated.   The "senior " water rights associated with these diversions have been 
placed into the State's Trust Water Program for in stream flow benefits (while new water 
rights have been granted from the Tieton River, granted as a result of consensus by 
Yakama Nation, USFWS, WDFW, NMFS and DOE because of the greater 
environmental benefit for salmon recovery within the Yakima River Basin).  

This property is contiguous with the 91.82 acre Stevenson Farm & Ranch Preservation 
Project also proposed for WWRP FPP in 2014 by the same sponsors/partners. 

Fit of Farm to Geographic Region - This area of Yakima County is predominantly 
intensive orchard and pasture ground mixed with hobby farms which are typically small 
pasture operations.  The land possesses the necessary market, infrastructure, and 
agricultural support services with the surrounding parcel sizes and land uses both 
complimenting long term agriculture and well suited to fragmentation.  

The land is well managed which benefits a healthy hay/pasture operation as well as a 
healthy environment.  The property’s environmental considerations are key contributors 
to the Cowiche Creek Watershed health. 

This property is contiguous with the 91.82 acre Stevenson Farm & Ranch Preservation 
Project also proposed for WWRP FPP in 2014 by the same sponsors/partners. 

Recommendation 

The Office of Farmland Preservation recommends to the Executive Director of the State 
Conservation Commission that we partner with NYCD on a grant request to the 
Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program Farmland Preservation category for 
protection of this key 370 acre cropland in Yakima County, Washington. 

 

  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 49 of 147



 

 

 

Looking North from Summitview Extension onto Lust Farm 

  

(L) looking east towards Cowiche Creek (R) looking north towards Naches Heights 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 50 of 147



 

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 51 of 147



 

 
 

March 11, 2014 
 
TO: Conservation Commission Members 
 Mark Clark, Executive Director 
 
FROM: Ron Shultz, Policy Director 
 
SUBJECT: Policy Updates for March Commission Meeting 

 
 
Summary:  Updates for the March Commission meeting on a variety of policy areas, 
including:  NWIFC Response; Elections Work Group; VSP Implementation; 2014 
Legislative Session. 
 
 
Action Requested:  None.  Information update only 
 
 
Staff Contacts:   Ron Shultz, Policy Director  (360) 407-7507   rshultz@scc.wa.gov 
 
 
 
Attached you will find updates on the following policy areas: 
 

1. NWIFC Response 
 

2. Election Proviso Work Group 
 

3. VSP Implementation 
 

4. 2014 Legislative Session 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 52 of 147



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 53 of 147



Washington State Conservation Commission 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2014 

 
__________________________________________________ 

 
 

Policy Update – NWIFC Response 
_______________________________________ 

 
At the January Commission meeting, the Commission approved a response to the 
NWIFC request that the Commission, among other things, condition funding on a NOAA 
Fisheries buffer table. 
 
In addition to approving “next steps” actions, the Commission also approved a letter to 
be drafted with the assistance of a drafting team.  A copy of the final letter is attached.  
Also attached is a background brief on the Commission’s actions and a list of the next 
steps. 
 
Over the course of the next month Commission staff will begin adding specifics to each 
of the next step actions for presentation to the Commission at the May meeting.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact: Ron Shultz, WSCC Policy Director   rshultz@scc.wa.gov 
 
 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 54 of 147

mailto:rshultz@scc.wa.gov


 
 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 55 of 147



 
 
February 5, 2014 
 
 
Mr. Mike Grayum 
Executive Director 
Northwest Indian Fisheries Commission 
6730 Martin Way E. 
Olympia, Washington  98516 
 
RE: Response to the NWIFC Correspondence of September 25, 2013 
 
Dear Mr. Grayum: 
 
In your letter of September 25, 2013, the Northwest Indian Fish Commission (NWIFC) requested the 
Conservation Commission consider adopting the NOAA buffer table and apply it as a condition to 
funding that the Conservation Commission (SCC) provides to conservation districts.  The SCC 
discussed this request at its January meeting and asked that I communicate this response to you. 
 
We agree it is critically important to ensure the protection and restoration of natural resources in our 
state.  Our years of experience implementing voluntary conservation programs have provided many 
“lessons learned” for success.  The Conservation Commission has declined to adopt the NMFS 
recommended interim buffer guidelines.  We believe there are other ways we can address natural 
resource concerns in a manner that will ensure success. 
 
Conservation districts (CDs) implement several important programs for the protection and restoration 
of natural resources.  These programs rely on landowner participation.  For landowners to willingly 
participate, our natural resource objectives must be met in a manner that maintains a viable 
agricultural economy.  Several examples of our successful voluntary programs are:  
 

• Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP) – Studies show CREP has been 
successful in reducing stream temperature and increasing streamside habitat.  Over the 15 
year implementation of the program, the average buffer width has been 142 feet.  A better 
indication of success is the length of streamside buffers.  To date, over 735 miles of stream 
length are enrolled in CREP.  Key elements of success in this program have been landowner 
participation, ongoing landowner maintenance of the sites, and funding incentives.  CREP has 
demonstrated remarkable natural resource improvements at the watershed and sub-basin 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 56 of 147



scales when program implementation is targeted to a specific area with the goal of maximum 
landowner participation.  This program is also a demonstration of close coordination with our 
federal partners at the Farm Service Agency (FSA). 
 

• Salmon Habitat Improvement – Conservation districts are the largest recipient of funds 
from the Family Forest Fish Passage Program (FFFPP) which assists private forestland 
owners in replacing culverts and other stream crossing structures that keep trout, salmon, and 
other fish from reaching upstream habitat.  CDs are successful in this program because of the 
local cooperation from a variety of entities, including many local tribes, working together 
with the landowners.  Since 2003, nearly 200 landowners have taken advantage of the 
program that has replaced 244 barriers and opened more than 524 miles of stream habitat. 
 

• Irrigation Efficiencies – The irrigation efficiencies program, implemented by the 
Conservation Commission with funding from Ecology, has successfully provided more water 
into streams for salmonid resources.  To date, 57 irrigation efficiencies projects have returned 
15,531 acre feet of water to 22 separate tributaries in seven fish-critical basins. 

 
What these examples show is voluntary incentive-based programs can be effective in addressing 
natural resource concerns.  The close cooperation of the CD’s with the landowner ensures their 
participation will lead to long-term success.  Over the 75-year history of our conservation system, we 
have learned that partnerships between landowners, conservation districts, the Conservation 
Commission, the Natural Resource Conservation Service (NRCS), tribes, state and local agencies, 
and local organizations enhance our opportunities for on-the-ground success.   
 
As with any program, periodic review is needed to ensure continued success.  The request in the 
letter of September 25, 2013, has presented an opportunity for the Conservation Commission, in 
conjunction with conservation districts, to assess our current practices.  On the whole, we are proud 
of our accomplishments.  However, we believe that the steps described below will make them even 
more successful. Thus, the Commission directed staff to take the following actions: 
 

1. Identify ways to increase landowner participation in incentive-based programs. 

2. Evaluate whether existing standards and practices used by conservation districts when 
working with landowners adequately address natural resource concerns, and improve the 
process for changing the standards and practices (if necessary). 

3. Evaluate both the current system of identifying natural resource concerns at the watershed 
scale and identify ways  conservation districts can incorporate this information into their work 
plans to determine whether changes are needed in this process.  

4. Consider how these issues might be included in the next biennial budget development process 
for conservation districts and the Conservation Commission. 

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 57 of 147



5. Identify funding sources necessary to assist conservation districts in implementing any 
recommended program changes. 

6. Evaluate watershed scale processes to identify “lessons learned” that could inform work with 
conservation districts on these topics. 

7. Identify, evaluate, and where appropriate implement monitoring approaches that will assist in 
tracking progress on improving natural resources concerns and apply adaptive management 
principles based on monitoring results.  Benchmarks would also need to be identified to 
determine whether progress is being made. 

8. Continue support for the Voluntary Stewardship Program (VSP). 

9. Continue to support the efforts of the Washington Association of Conservation Districts 
(WACD), and conservation districts individually, in their efforts to build and continue strong 
working relationships with tribes. 

 
These efforts will be made in close coordination with conservation districts and other partners, 
including tribes, state and local governments, federal agencies, and non-governmental organizations.  
We will also continue our close partnership with, and support for, NRCS in their continued 
development and application of the field office technical guide (FOTG) and other conservation 
planning tools to determine what is reasonable and needed to accomplish the natural resource 
concerns to be addressed.   We recognize more detail will need to be added to specify how these 
actions will be implemented, but the Conservation Commission is committed, beginning now, to 
putting these actions in motion. 
 
Also at their January meeting, the Conservation Commission expressed its interest in continued 
support for close working relationships between the tribes and conservation districts by appointing 
Commissioner Larry Davis as the Commission’s representative to the WACD Tribal Outreach Task 
Force.  Many conservation districts already work very closely with a local tribe, including: 
 

• Walla Walla CD partnering with the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla on stream 
restoration projects. 

• Snohomish CD working with the Stillaguamish Tribe of Indians on cooperative projects with 
farmers to restore salmon riparian habitat. 

• Lewis CD working with the Chehalis Tribe on flood control and farm protection projects. 

Over the past several years, the Conservation Commission has been working with our partners at the 
departments of Ecology and Agriculture on water quality and agricultural issues.  It was during these 
discussions that we received the correspondence referred to in your letter of last September.  Each of 
the referenced letters was addressed to the three directors and would therefore require a coordinated 
response from the three.  However, the letters should have been acknowledged by my agency, and for 
that, I apologize.  In meetings between Conservation Commission staff and NWIFC staff prior to the 
SCC taking action at its January meeting, our staff made a commitment to continue to work with 
your staff to review and discuss the items addressed in those letters. 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 58 of 147



Your September letter also referenced actions by districts that I feel warrants a response.  The first 
was the statement that “a few select conservation districts are ideologically opposed to working with 
federal fish agency expertise, and are unwilling to implement their recommendations.”  We disagree 
with this statement.  As noted above, conservation districts currently work very closely with state, 
federal, and tribal fish agency experts on project implementation.  The second was the statement 
regarding the Puget Sound Conservation Districts (PSCD) caucus response to the PS Partnership 
request for comments on how National Estuary Program (NEP) funds should be spent.  The PSCD 
response was answering specific questions asked by the Partnership.  After indicating their support 
for funding a Shellfish Strategic Initiative and moving away from further studies and toward more 
on-the-ground implementation, the PSCD addressed the questions relating to pathogen investments.  
They encouraged decoupling pathogen funding from salmon recovery, not because they do not 
support efforts to restore salmon habitat, but because actions to address pathogens are different from 
those necessary to address salmon habitat restoration.  The PSCD were encouraging a focus on onsite 
septic systems and increasing funding for PIC programs – something tribes also support. 
 
The Conservation Commission acknowledges the importance of continued healthy salmon 
populations, cool clean water, and the need to make progress on improving our natural resources.  
Through our actions I hope you will see that the Conservation Commission takes seriously its 
commitment to review and, where necessary, improve our conservation system to ensure resource 
protection and restoration in the context of a vibrant agricultural economy.  We believe the two are 
compatible and hope that you do as well. 
 
We look forward to working with you, the member tribes of the NWIFC, and tribes across the state 
to make sustainable, long-lasting improvements to the resources we all share. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Mark Clark 
Executive Director 
  
cc: Governor Jay Inslee 
 Roylene Rides at the Door, State Conservationist, NRCS 
 Dennis McLerran, Administrator, US EPA Region 10 
 Will Stelle, Regional Administrator, NOAA Fisheries 
 Maia Bellon, Director, Washington Department of Ecology 
 Bud Hover, Director Washington Department of Agriculture 
 Dan Opalski, US EPA Region 10 
 Jerrod Davis, Office of Shellfish and Water Protection, Washington Department of Health 
 Alan Stromberger, President Washington Association of Conservation Districts 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 59 of 147



 
 
 

Conservation Commission and Conservation District Action to 
Address Salmon Recovery and Water Quality 
___________________________________________ 

 
Background: 
 

On September 25, 2013, Michael Grayum, Executive Director of the NWIFC submitted a 
letter to Mark Clark, Executive Director of the State Conservation Commission 
requesting the Commission apply the NOAA buffer table to state funds provided by the 
Commission to conservation districts.  The Commission considered the request, held 
discussions with conservation districts and held a public meeting on the request.  On 
January 16, 2014 the Conservation Commission took the following action. 
 
Action Taken:    
 

The Conservation Commission declined to condition funding on the NOAA Fisheries 
buffer table, but recognized the importance of ensuring Commission programs and 
conservation district activities address state natural resource concerns of water quality 
and riparian species habitat, especially salmonid habitat.  The Commission directed 
staff to take the following actions: 
 

• Identify ways to increase landowner participation in incentive-based programs. 
• Evaluate whether existing standards and practices used by conservation districts 

when working with landowners address natural resource concerns, and improve 
the process for changing the standards and practices (if necessary). 

• Evaluate the current system of identifying natural resource concerns at the 
watershed scale and how conservation districts incorporate this information into 
their work plans to determine whether changes are needed in this process. 

• Consider how these issues might be included in the next biennial budget 
development process for conservation districts and the Conservation 
Commission. 

• Identify funding sources necessary to assist conservation districts in 
implementing any recommended program changes. 

• Evaluate watershed scale processes to identify “lessons learned” that could 
inform work with conservation districts on these topics. 

• Identify, evaluate, and where appropriate implement monitoring approaches that 
will assist in tracking progress on improving natural resources concerns and 
apply adaptive management principles based on monitoring results.  
Benchmarks would also need to be identified to determine whether progress is 
being made. 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 60 of 147



 
 
 

• Continue support for the Voluntary Stewardship Program (VSP). 
• Continue to support the efforts of the Washington Association of Conservation 

Districts (WACD), and conservation districts individually, in their efforts to build 
and continue strong working relationships with tribes. 

 
These efforts will be done in close coordination with conservation districts and other 
partners, including tribes, state and local governments, federal agencies, and non-
governmental organizations. 
 
Next Steps: 
 
The Conservation Commission identified a Commission member subcommittee to assist 
staff with developing a process to implement these steps and to add more detail where 
necessary. 
 
 
 
For More Information, Contact: 
 
Ron Shultz 
WSCC Policy Director 
(360) 407-7507 
rshultz@scc.wa.gov 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 61 of 147

mailto:rshultz@scc.wa.gov


Washington State Conservation Commission 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2014 

 
__________________________________________________ 

 
 
 

Policy Update – Election Proviso Update 
_______________________________________ 

 
 
Conservation districts were sent a copy of the draft Election Proviso Report on February 
24, with instructions on how to comment to the Commission on the report.  More 
specifically, the districts were asked to review the criteria identified in the report and use 
them to evaluate the election options presented.  We also encouraged the districts to 
come up with their own option if we missed something. 
 
Districts have until May 19th to response to us so we can incorporate comments and 
answer questions.  The schedule has the draft final report and recommendations 
coming to the Commission at the July meeting.  Then the report and recommendations 
will go to the legislature. 
 
On March 6, Commission staff conducted an informational webinar to brief the districts 
on the report and review what we are requesting of them.  There were 25 people on the 
webinar.  No significant questions or issues were raised. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact: Ron Shultz, WSCC Policy Director   rshultz@scc.wa.gov 

Megan Finkenbinder, WSCC Program Specialist   
mfinkenbinder@scc.wa.gov 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 62 of 147

mailto:rshultz@scc.wa.gov
mailto:mfinkenbinder@scc.wa.gov


 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 63 of 147



Conservation District Elections 
Proviso Report 
Webinar to review and discuss conservation district 
elections proviso report 
 

March 6, 2014  -  10:00 am – 11:00 am 
 
Ron Shultz – Moderator and Presenter 
Comments or Questions – rshultz@scc.wa.gov 
 
Webinar ID – 368312025 
http://www.gotomeeting.com/online/webinar 
Phone Audio:   415-655-0061   ID:  333-800-733 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 64 of 147

mailto:rshultz@scc.wa.gov
http://www.gotomeeting.com/online/webinar


Background 
 2013 -15 WSCC Operating Budget included the following proviso: 
 

The conservation commission must evaluate the current system for the election of conservation 
district board supervisors and recommend improvements to ensure the highest degree of public 
involvement in these elections.  The commission must engage with stakeholder groups and 
conservation districts to gather a set of options for improvement to district elections, which must 
include an option aligning district elections with state and local general elections.  The commission 
must submit a report detailing the options to the office of financial management and appropriate 
committees of the legislature by December 10, 2013. 

 

 The stakeholder workgroup includes the following: 
◦ Dave Vogel and Alan Stromberger, WACD 

◦ Lori Augino, State Elections Officer, Washington Secretary of State’s Office 

◦ Susan Eidenschink, League of Women Voters 

◦ Craig Nelson, WADE 

◦ Larry Davis, Whatcom Conservation District and State Conservation Commission 

◦ Bill Eller and Megan Finkenbinder, Conservation Commission Staff 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 65 of 147



Report Highlights 
 Pages 2 – 6 provide an in depth look at the history of conservation districts (why were 

districts formed, founding principles, etc.).  Also included is the history of the State 
Conservation Commission, duties and responsibilities of a district supervisor, funding and 
taxing authority and rates and charges authority. 

 

 Pages 7 – 11 provide an overview of the current conservation district elections process.  
We also include concerns raised about conservation district elections in the May, 2011 
report by the League of Women Voters titled “Washington State Conservation Districts:  
A Report by the League of Women Voters of Washington.” 

 

 Pages 13 – 16 list the criteria developed by the election proviso work group that was 
used to evaluate the options listed on pages 16 – 17. 

 

 The options reviewed on pages 16 – 17 included nine elemental options as well as three 
hybrid options.  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 66 of 147



Criteria 
 When discussing the current conservation district election process, 

the Work Group determined a set of agreed upon criteria would 
be helpful to evaluate not only the current system, but also any 
possible alternatives.  

 The group discussed various features of what would consider to be 
a successful election in the context of the unique nature and work 
of conservation districts. 

  A fundamental principle of the Work Group was any alternative 
should not diminish the ability of conservation districts to maintain 
their unique relationship with landowners and their capacity to 
work with landowners to get important conservation work on the 
ground.  

 The criteria developed by the Work Group are in no priority order. 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 67 of 147



Criteria 
 1. Participation 
 The issue of voter participation and voter turnout has been a common 

topic when discussing conservation district elections.  
 As noted, the number of voters in conservation district elections can 

vary from extremely low to relatively high if there is a contested race.  
 The Work Group considered voter participation to be important, but 

in particular they believe the critical factor is whether the election 
process provides better opportunities for voters to participate.  

 All we can really do in any election is create the opportunity for 
someone to vote if they desire; we cannot make them vote, or 
guarantee a specified level of voter participation.  

 One Work Group member brought up the recent 2013 election as an 
example. The election is a statewide mail-in ballot and every registered 
voter received a ballot in the mail. But voter turnout was, according to 
one new source, the lowest in a decade at 44%. 

 
 Criteria:   Degree to which the option increases opportunities for 

voter participation in the election.  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 68 of 147



Criteria 
2.  Increasing awareness of conservation district 
 Engagement with landowners is the core of conservation district 

work.  
 A conservation district election is an excellent opportunity for 

members of the conservation district community to be made 
aware the work of the conservation district and engage in the  
operation of the conservation district.  

 Some election options may increase this visibility,  while others 
may work against the opportunity to communicate with the 
broader  community.   

 
 Criteria:   Degree to which the option increases opportunities to 

communicate broadly the work of the conservation district and 
engage the local community.  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 69 of 147



Criteria 
3.   Cost of election  
 Running an election can be a very expensive proposition.  
 Whether the cost is borne by the conservation district or by the 

county auditor, there are expenses to cover when an election is 
held.  

 Costs of elections compete with funding available to put 
conservation on the ground, and to assist local landowners in 
stewardship.  

 There are a number of options by which to address the cost issue 
(i.e., who pays what costs).   

 
 Criteria:   Degree to which the option remains affordable for the 

conservation district, and 521 allows maximum application of 
district funding to be applied toward conservation work 522 on the 
ground.  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 70 of 147



Criteria 
4.   Promote or encourage volunteer participation for conservation 

district boards 
 Conservation districts depend upon the full engagement of dedicated 

and knowledgeable volunteers to serve on conservation district 
boards.  

 Board members serve without compensation and must dedicate many 
long hours to conservation district work.  

 Many conservation district board members are landowners or land 
managers who have farm operations and businesses to run.  

 Elections can be expensive for the candidates or can require a level of 
financial disclosure that some may find burdensome and a barrier to 
seeking a volunteer and public service office.  

 The method of the election can also be a barrier to potential 
candidates if information about when the election will occur or the 
process to file as a candidate is difficult to find out.   

 
 Criteria:   Degree to which the option encourages participation as a 

candidate.  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 71 of 147



Criteria 
5.  Maintaining the working and trust relationship with landowners and 

other community stakeholders 
 As described in this report a fundamental value and strength of 

conservation districts is their relationship with the landowners and 
land managers across the state.  

 The successful implementation of incentive-based programs 
necessarily requires the cooperation and engagement of the 
landowner.  

 The farmer must have a level of trust with the conservation district 
staff who will be working with them on their land.  

 Any option considered for the election process must maintain this 
fundamental feature of conservation districts.   

 
 Criteria:   Degree to which the option maintains or enhances the 

trust relationship with the landowners. 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 72 of 147



Criteria 
6. Help build and support accountability 
 Generally, elections provide accountability to those who elect the officials by 

providing a vehicle for change if the electorate is dissatisfied.  
 Of course, the opposite is true as well. If the electorate is satisfied with the elected 

body, they can retain the officials.  
 The point is there is a level of direct accountability to the electorate.  This is 

especially true if the entity has authority to impose taxes, fees, or levy an 
assessment.  

 Since conservation districts implement projects and activities that also meet the 
priority needs of local and state governments there is also a degree of 
accountability to those other units and levels of government as to how the work is 
being done.   Some of this accountability can be achieved in the form of grant 
contracts.   But there may also be other forms of accountability such as 
representation of the agency at the district.  

 Election alternatives considered should place a high value on this combination of 
different levels of  conservation district accountability.  

 
 Criteria:  
 6a. Degree to which the option provides accountability for local residents.  
 6b. Degree to which the option provides accountability to other units and levels of 

government. 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 73 of 147



Criteria 
7.   Not diminishing locally-led purpose of district  
 As described in this report, a foundational principle of conservation 

districts is locally led conservation working closely with the 
farmers on the land.  

 Although conservation districts can provide valuable assistance to, 
and be tool for, accomplishing state and federal resource priorities, 
the real focus and drive of their work is to lead solutions locally.  

 
 Criteria:   Degree to which the option maintains or enhances 

locally led conservation.  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 74 of 147



Possible Options 
The work group applied the criteria outlined above to the following 
election options:  

1. No change to the current system.  
2. Keep the current system but hold all district elections on the 

same day or over several  days.  
3. Keep the current system but divide each conservation district into 

three areas with one supervisor elected for each area.  
4. Keep the current system but eliminate the landowner / operator 

requirement.   
5. Keep the current system but have all five board members elected.  
6. Keep the current system but have the election run by the county 

auditor.  
7. Place district election for three board members on the general 

election ballot.  
8. Place district election on the general election ballot for all five 

board members.  
9. County commissioners / council appoint three or all five of the 

district board members.  
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 75 of 147



Possible Options 
In addition to the options evaluated, reviewers suggested several hybrid approaches 
should be  considered.   These include:  
 
 Combine general election options with greater authority to impose assessment or 

raise funds by other means. This option would make conservation districts 
consistent with port districts and school districts, each having authority to levy a 
property tax. It would also be consistent with addressing concerns raised regarding 
accountability to the electorate for funds raised and spent. The downside would be 
the creation of yet another special purpose district with revenue generating 
authority, and the cost issues would still have to be addressed.   

 
 Selection of election option could be the choice of a conservation district. A 

conservation district board could choose whether to maintain the current or 
modified election system, or could choose to go on the general election ballot with 
additional authority noted above.  

 
 Vary election approach based on the population of a conservation district. For 

smaller conservation districts the option of appearing on the general election ballot 
may not be feasible for a number of reasons.   Another approach may be to set 
various population thresholds where, once each threshold is reached, the election 
process becomes more dependent on the general election ballot.  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 76 of 147



What we need from you 
As stated in the memo sent out to conservation district managers and chairs on February 24, 
2014 we are very interested in hearing from each conservation district on the following: 

 

 Comments and suggestions regarding the context of the elections proviso report.  These 
can be submitted via email to Megan Finkenbinder and mfinkenbinder@scc.wa.gov 

 

 Review the list of options identified in the report, keeping in mind the criteria and answer 
the following questions: 
◦ Are these options adequate 

◦ Did we miss any options, if so, please provide your suggested options in your response 

 

 What are you as a conservation district willing to do or change with respect to elections? 
◦ Responding to this question with “no changes necessary” is an appropriate response.  We are really looking to get a feel for 

how conservation districts view the election process. 

 

All of your comments are due by COB on May 19, 2014.  This timeline provides 60 business 
days to review and comment.   

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 77 of 147

mailto:mfinkenbinder@scc.wa.gov


Timeline 
 As stated before, comments are due by COB on May 19, 2014.  Please 

submit them to Megan Finkenbinder at mfinkenbinder@scc.wa.gov 

 

 Upon receipt of comments from districts, they will be presented to the 
Elections Proviso workgroup for review and consideration.   

 The workgroup will then make their recommendations of the proposed 
final report for the Commission’s consideration.   

 If the report as recommended is adopted at the Commission meeting, 
formal notification will be sent to conservation districts and other affected 
parties. 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 78 of 147

mailto:mfinkenbinder@scc.wa.gov


Questions 
 
 
Ron Shultz, Director of Policy 
Washington State Conservation Commission 
360.407.7507 
rshultz@scc.wa.gov 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 79 of 147

mailto:rshultz@scc.wa.gov


Washington State Conservation Commission 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2014 

 
__________________________________________________ 

 
 

Policy Update – VSP Implementation Status 
_______________________________________ 

 
 
Final contracts have been entered in to with Thurston and Chelan counties.  They have 
each begun implementation and have 18 months from January to complete a work plan 
and submit it to the Conservation Commission for approval. 
 
Each county has begun convening local stakeholder efforts.  From this they will begin 
the process of identifying the critical areas within the selected watersheds.  The next 
step in the work plan will be to craft a landowner outreach strategy to assist landowners 
in the development of landowner plans to address protection of critical areas.  These 
will be due to the Commission from these two counties by July 2015. 
 
Once these county plans are sent to the SCC executive director, the Commission 
submits the plans to the state technical panel that has 45 days to review and make a 
recommendation to the SCC executive director as to whether to approve the work plan. 
 
The funding for the remaining VSP counties has been hotly discussed in the legislature 
this year.  The VSP statute includes a deadline of July 2015 after which counties not 
funded in VSP would be removed from the program and must update their critical areas 
ordinances for agriculture consistent with the traditional GMA approach.  This deadline 
and the lack of funding for all counties have lead to a great deal of pressure to fund the 
program this year or to move the deadline year. 
 
A bill to move the 2015 deadline to 2021 was introduced in the House and was very 
controversial among the entities who negotiated the VSP agreement.  In the end, the bill 
did not pass and the parties agreed to pursue funding for the program.  As of March 11, 
the Senate proposed supplemental capital budget includes $7 million for full funding of 
the program.  The House has not included any funding.  Negotiations continue and we 
will have a final answer by the Commission meeting on March 20. 
 
 
Contact: Ron Shultz, WSCC Policy Director   rshultz@scc.wa.gov 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 80 of 147

mailto:rshultz@scc.wa.gov


 
 
 
 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 81 of 147



Washington State Conservation Commission 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2014 

 
__________________________________________________ 

 
 

Policy Update – 2014 Legislative Session 
Water Quality Trading Bill 

_______________________________________ 
 
 
As of March 11, the legislature continues to negotiate final supplemental operating and 
capital budgets in anticipation of their March 13 adjournment.  Both versions of the 
House and Senate operating budgets are similar, with the House including two new 
provisos.   Attached is a report on the budgets when they were released. 
 
In the supplemental capital budgets, the Senate included $7 million for full funding of the 
VSP.  The House did not have any new money for the Commission.  This topic is being 
negotiated. 
 
While we were tracking several bills of interest this session, only one passed that 
directly impacts the Conservation Commission – SHB 2454 regarding water quality 
trading. 
 
The bill directs the Conservation Commission to explore whether there are potential 
buyers and sellers in Washington watersheds for a water quality trading program.  We 
are to work in partnership with Ecology, and to build upon work we previously did on 
conservation markets.  Any water quality trading program must be consistent with the 
water quality framework developed by Ecology.  The Commission must coordinate with 
tribes, WSDA and other state agencies, local governments, and interested 
stakeholders. 
 
The final report is due to the legislature by October 31, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact: Ron Shultz, WSCC Policy Director   rshultz@scc.wa.gov 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 82 of 147

mailto:rshultz@scc.wa.gov


 
 
 
 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 83 of 147



H-3828.1 _____________________________________________
SUBSTITUTE HOUSE BILL 2454

_____________________________________________
State of Washington 63rd Legislature 2014 Regular Session
By House Agriculture & Natural Resources (originally sponsored by
Representatives Blake, Buys, Lytton, and Smith)
READ FIRST TIME 02/05/14.

 1 AN ACT Relating to developing a water quality trading program in
 2 Washington; adding a new section to chapter 89.08 RCW; creating a new
 3 section; and providing an expiration date.

 4 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON:

 5 NEW SECTION.  Sec. 1.  (1) The legislature finds that water quality
 6 trading is an innovative approach adopted in at least seventeen other
 7 states that can lead to a more efficient achievement of water quality
 8 goals.  The premise of water quality trading is based on the fact that
 9 certain sources in a given watershed can have very different costs to
10 control the same pollutant.  Trading programs allow facilities facing
11 higher pollution control costs to meet their regulatory obligations by
12 purchasing environmentally equivalent or superior pollution reductions
13 from another source at a lower cost.  This trading achieves the same
14 water quality improvement at lower overall cost.
15 (2) The legislature further finds that the United States
16 environmental protection agency has been supportive of water quality
17 trading programs since 1993 when it issued an initial document called
18 the National Water Quality Trading Policy.  With this publication, the

p. 1 SHB 2454
03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 84 of 147



 1 environmental protection agency sent a clear signal of federal support
 2 for this innovative, market-based approach to improving water quality.
 3 (3) The legislature further finds that water quality trading is,
 4 and should remain, a voluntary option that regulated point sources can
 5 use to meet the discharge limits in their national pollutant discharge
 6 elimination system permits.
 7 (4) The legislature recognizes that setting up a water quality
 8 trading program can be a complex task that needs to be transparent,
 9 must have real, accountable deductions in pollution inputs, must be
10 defensible, and must be enforceable.  A water quality trading program
11 may not be suitable for many watersheds in the state.  However, the
12 legislature also finds that the state of Washington should explore the
13 option as a tool for achieving water quality goals and investigate
14 whether this tool is viable given the specific, local water quality
15 concerns facing Washington's water bodies.
16 (5) The legislature further recognizes that the department of
17 ecology has produced a draft water quality trading framework that
18 enables trading in Washington and that to date a major barrier to
19 trading is a lack of interested credit purchasers.

20 NEW SECTION.  Sec. 2.  A new section is added to chapter 89.08 RCW
21 to read as follows:
22 (1) The state conservation commission, in partnership with the
23 department of ecology, shall build upon the report on conservation
24 markets produced pursuant to chapter 133, Laws of 2008 and explore
25 whether there are potential buyers and sellers in Washington watersheds
26 for a water quality trading program.  Specifically, the state
27 conservation commission should examine watersheds in which total
28 maximum daily loads have been produced, and assess whether there are
29 potential buyers, or permit holders, and sellers of credit to support
30 a water quality trading program consistent with the water quality
31 trading framework developed by the department of ecology.
32 (2) The state conservation commission must coordinate with Indian
33 tribes, the department of agriculture and other state agencies, local
34 governments, and other interested stakeholders in completing the
35 assessment and report required by this section.  Prior to finalizing
36 the assessment and report, the state conservation commission must

SHB 2454 p. 2
03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 85 of 147



 1 ensure that the department of ecology concurs with its determination of
 2 whether or not there is the potential for a viable water quality
 3 trading program.
 4 (3) The state conservation commission must report its findings to
 5 the legislature consistent with RCW 43.01.036 by October 31, 2017.
 6 (4) This section expires June 30, 2018.

--- END ---

p. 3 SHB 2454
03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 86 of 147



 

March 2014 
 
TO: Conservation Commission Members 
 Mark Clark, Executive Director 
 
FROM: Josh Giuntoli, OFP Project Coordinator 
 
SUBJECT: Update on Recent OFP Activities 

___________________________________________________________________ 

Recent activity: 

 Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program Farmland Preservation  
o Cowiche Basin Rangelands – currently funded 

 Working on a revised appraisal 
 Reviewed several like project appraisals 

o 2014 WWRP Farmland Applications 
 Eastern Klickitat CD (in packet) (19,687 contiguous acres total) 
 North Yakima CD - Potential 
 Spokane CD - Potential 

o Coordination activities with WDFW, State Parks, RCO and EKCD on Simcoe 
property (33,000 acres) 

 2014 Legislature 
o OFP has been providing support to open space tax stakeholders including 

testifying in legislative hearings, agency coordination and reviewing draft 
legislation. 

 Succession Planning 
o Work continues on deliverables under the Specialty Crop Block Grant 

 Final draft of workbook is expected April 4. 
o Palouse Conservation District 

 Presented at a succession planning workshop coordinated by Palouse CD 
along with local firm Waddell and Reed. 

o Center for Latino Farmers Small Farms Conference 
 Presented with WSU on succession planning 

 Food Policy Activities 
o Washington Food Systems Roundtable has officially convened 

 Charter has been adopted 
 Co-chaired by State Agency (DSHS) and Non-state agency (Childhood 

Obesity Prevention Coalition) 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 87 of 147



 Recent Outreach/Coordination/Networking 
o Monthly OFP Newsletter 

 Averaging nearly 600 monthly readers 
o Habitat Lands Coordinating Group 

 Presented potential projects at annual coordinating forum. 
 Participants included lands group members, committee staff, state 

agencies, elected officials, and public 
o Puget Sound Partnership Near Term Action – Agriculture Strategy  

 Agriculture Strategy. PSP, in collaboration with WSDA, Ecology, the 
Conservation Commission, and agricultural partners will develop a Puget 
Sound agricultural strategy by December 2013. This strategy will identify 
needs for maintaining the health of the industry, and key areas where the 
agricultural industry can contribute to the protection and restoration of 
Puget Sound. It will be included in the 2013 Action Agenda. 

o Local Farms and Food Roundtable 
 Organized by City of Seattle, King County and the Pike Place Market 
 Goal is to link food production, processing, distribution, consumption and 

waste management to facilitate reliance on the region’s ag potential. 
 Participating on Land Preservation Sub-Committee 

o Results Washington 
 Coordination activities with WSDA 
 Goal 3 – Sustainable Energy and a Clean Environment – Goal Topic - 

Working and Natural Lands. Outcome Measure - 4.1 - Increase the net 
statewide acreage dedicated to working farms from 7.237 million to 
7.347 million by 2020 

o Census of Agriculture 
 Conducted an analysis of recent ag Census data.   
 Published analysis in March 2014 OFP Newsletter 

o The Wildlife Society Annual Meeting 
 Presented at 2014 annual meeting on agricultural conservation 

easements as part of a panel on conservation of working/private lands 
o Mother Earth News 

 SCC/OFP will be participating in the 2014 Mother Earth News Fair  
 Will seek donation from Plant Materials Center for bareroot stock.  Last 

year we distributed 10,000 trees. 
 Booth volunteer signups will be available in April 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 88 of 147



 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 3 
 

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 89 of 147



MARCH 6, 2014 (V4)  

TO: WACD AND WSCC MEMBERS 

FROM: WACD TECHNICAL PROFICIENCY & PLANNING COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT:  TECHNICAL LEADERSHIP, IMPLEMENTATION EXPERTISE, RESEARCH, & 
QUALITY ASSURANCE REGARDING 20-21 ACTION PLAN 

 

SUMMARY  

Presented in this paper are the WACD Tech Workgroup’s recommendations to the Washington State 
Conservation Commission on how to address the Technical Leadership, Implementation Expertise, 
Research and Quality Assurance strategic area of the 20-21 Path Forward Action Plan.   

These recommendations emphasize the need for a coordinated, statewide effort to continue to both 
strengthen and develop the quality and professionalism of our technical staff and our work products, 
while also ensuring our work results in meaningful changes in conservation behavior.  These goals are 
more important than ever.  Equally important is the documentation and assurance regarding 
improvements to natural resource stewardship outcomes we are targeting for ourselves and for our 
partners.   

The Individual recommendations for Technical Leadership, Implementation Expertise, Research, & 
Quality Assurance fall into six specific strategic sub-areas: 

1. Tools, Proficiencies and Certification 
2. Training Opportunities, Needs and Pathways 
3. Quality Assurance 
4. Research, Implementation, and Effectiveness Monitoring of Conservation Systems 
5. Technical Expertise in Statewide Policy and Programs 
6. Workload and Budget 

In the “Recommendations” section below, goals for each sub-area are described and the core activities for 
the dedicated staff are outlined.   

Essential for implementing the following recommendations and vision is dedicated state-level staffing to 
lead and coordinate this body of work.  These recommendations also recognize that great progress will 
come with continued widespread engagement and leadership from individual Conservation District 
supervisors, managers, and staff across the Washington State Conservation District system. We have also 
identified the possible and appropriate staff willing to help coordinate these separate strategic areas.   

 

  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 90 of 147



BACKGROUND  

Conservation District technical expertise development has long been an important goal of the WACD 
Technical Employee Work Group (“Tech Workgroup”). It has gained additional focus lately as 
Conservation Districts have begun bringing stewardship solutions into coordinated work with regulatory 
agency partners, including critical areas codes, Voluntary Stewardship Projects, and technical assistance 
related to referrals from area regulatory agencies. Technical expertise development has also been 
identified and supported by the 20-21 Action Plan, a document that outlines the future direction of CD 
work across the State.  

The 20-21 Action Plan recommendations were a product from several statewide sessions convened by 
Conservation Commission staff and WACD leadership, with Conservation District supervisors, managers, 
and other lead staff.  This plan identified 14 separate strategy foci that were grouped into four broad, 
strategic areas: 

1. Communications, Partnership Building and Public Outreach 
2. Strategic Direction 
3. Technical Leadership, Implementation Expertise, Research and Quality Assurance 
4. Policy and Funding 

The Commission, at their September 2013 meeting, tasked the WACD Tech Workgroup to develop a 
pathway towards addressing the top technical recommendations from the 20-21 Action Plan: Technical 
Leadership, Implementation Expertise, Research and Quality Assurance. The WACD Tech Work Group 
was selected for this work because it has over the last 5 years, it has lead a number of professional 
development projects, ranging from standardizing conservation plan formats, inventorying staff 
proficiencies and training needs, and most recently, piloting a Conservation District professional 
certification for Dairy Nutrient Management Planning. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Overall Goal: 

The ultimate goal of the Technical Workgroups recommendations is to ensure that conservation districts 
have the necessary technical expertise to consistently plan and implement conservation practices, projects, 
and programs.  

Vision:  

Landowners and their communities will make decisions to meet a higher level of natural resource 
protection and stewardship based on the technical assistance, programs, tools, and guidance they receive 
from CDs.  Districts are recognized for their proficient staff with the technical knowledge and expertise 
necessary to assist landowners.  Districts continually strive to improve technical assistance delivery 
through research and development.  Consistency and performance is promoted among CDs and staff 
statewide through training and certification.  Evaluation of the effectiveness of work and services will 
demonstrate improvement of natural resources.  An overarching structure exists that supports leadership 
in this area. 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 91 of 147



Guiding Principles:  

• Individual CDs and their Boards are accountable for District performance and employee 
development.  

• Landowners are the ultimate land-use decision makers.  
• Actively seek collaboration and partnership, internally and externally. 
• Focus on strengths, roles, and motivations of Districts, employees, landowners, and partners. 
• District accountability is recognized by other Districts, commission, and outside partners. 
• Social networks and behaviors of landowners are critical to achieving conservation results. 
• Staff are well-trained and proficient in their areas of expertise. 

 
Recommendation Sub-Areas: 
 
1. Tools, Proficiencies and Certification 

 
Goal: To ensure that each   Conservation District employee has awareness of, and access to tools and 
training necessary to be technically proficient  within their discipline. 

 
Exceptional technical staff development begins with a solid commitment from CD staff and 
supervisors to support each technical employee from before the date of hire.  The activities in this 
section involve cataloging and communicating existing resources available to technical staff and 
developing new materials as needed. The Tech Work group will support CD management and staff in 
this commitment by: 

 
• Developing model job descriptions that clearly outline expectations in the areas of technical 

knowledge, planning process, social context awareness, and quality and content of work products;  
• Developing and distributing lists of required proficiencies and expectations for each discipline 

area; 
• Providing materials and support to orient new hires and assess their initial skill levels; 
• Providing information on ethics and liability considerations in planning and technical 

assistance; 
• Ensuring that technical employees, have convenient access to training appropriate to their 

discipline, from a variety of sources and delivery methods; 
• Ensuring that technical employees have convenient access to necessary tools for conducting site 

assessments and evaluations 
• Coordinating job shadowing and mentoring opportunities with personnel experienced in their 

discipline  
• Providing model training plans and guidance on planning models appropriate for differing land 

uses, scales of operation, levels of complexity, landowner education, etc.; 
• Providing guidance for following NRCS standards, uses of engineered solutions, innovative 

adaptations and demonstrated conservation management practices; 
• Providing certification opportunities to verify skills in particular disciplines (e.g., Dairy NMP, 

Small Farms); 
• Developing and communicating to CD staff the various funding structures, grant 

opportunities, and ties to good governance procedures to support employee training and 
certification needs; 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 92 of 147



• Developing and communicating model performance evaluation materials, schedules, and 
incentives for implementing evaluation plans; 

• Creating and maintaining a list of experts by discipline for purposes of mentoring, peer-to-peer 
training, and technical input on policy and programs. 

 

Core activities 

• Model job descriptions.  
• New hire orientations and related materials. 
• Coordinate basic training and special certification programs and trainings.  
• Coordinate inter-District mentoring and job shadowing opportunities.  
• Coordinate development and distribution of planning models. 
• Coordinate development and distribution of proficiency lists. 
• Provide training for implementation of NRCS standards and alternative conservation practice 

standards. 
• Develop, maintain, and communicate model performance evaluations and plans. 
• Create and maintain list of experts by discipline. 
 

2. Training Opportunities, Needs and Pathways  

Goal: To provide all CD staff with access to high quality training related to their professional 
development needs and recognize those who complete training. 

Districts across the state should be oriented to and participating in coordinated professional 
development planning.  Elements of this work include needs surveying, information sharing, and 
partner collaboration and communication.  Work would build upon ongoing surveying of employee 
training needs and opportunity posting (i.e., training calendar). 

Through this effort, there will be strong coordination and communication between CDs, NRCS, 
WADE, WACD, the Commission, and other partners to support the professional development needs 
of District staff. 

Some of the key outcomes of this work will include coordination and delivery of CD professional 
certifications, peer to peer mentoring, and other training offerings, including key contributions to 
WADE Conference coordination. 

Core Activities 

• Establish and coordinate CD orientation process. Provide professional development planning for 
employees, awareness training for supervisors, and integration training for managers.  

• Manage/maintain training needs inventory of all technical staff and their proficiencies; use 
inventory to identify training needs. 

• Utilize information clearinghouse and facilitate communication. 
• Lead collaboration and partnership work. 
• Coordinate peer to peer mentoring. 
• Manage certification processes.  
• Coordinate training offerings. 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 93 of 147



• Establish and maintain communication with and between CDs on professional development 
opportunities. 

• Ensure all CD staff have access to training opportunities. 
 
 
3. Research, Implementation, and Effectiveness Monitoring of Conservation Systems  

 
 Goals: To demonstrate change in conservation systems resulting from conservation planning and 
implementation of programs and practices through effectiveness monitoring. To provide a scientific 
basis for guidance, supplement our knowledge base, and answer specific conservation questions by 
conducting or supporting research.  

 
The purpose of this work is to address emerging needs and issues through use of high quality data and 
information collection. 
 
Strategies for a successful implementation process will need to be outlined, including techniques for 
optimizing landowner participation in conservation programs and plan development.   
 
In order to develop a monitoring program, the next phase of this effort will involve exploring 
opportunities to develop monitoring programs to be used by CD’s and landowners.  These will 
include improving systems for implementation monitoring (assessing levels of Conservation 
Management Practice implementation and program participation and specific data such as 
Conservation Practice cost), as well as effectiveness monitoring.   
 
Implementation monitoring will occur through improved tools and protocols for data collection on 
BMP implementation and program participation.  A system will be developed to assist districts with 
consistent reporting of information to the Commission, such as participation rates, acres planned, and 
practices implemented. 
 
A strategy for effectiveness monitoring will be developed to show the effect of conservation practices 
on natural resource outcomes.  This may include a variety of levels of targeted monitoring including 
scales ranging from site, field, farm, sub-basin to watershed.  
 
This effort will provide support for research projects that are identified and implemented by 
individual Conservation Districts or by interdisciplinary teams.  A central clearinghouse will be 
provided for information on funding sources, technical capacity within specific districts, resources 
available for CD employees conducting research (e.g., land, databases, equipment, etc.), capabilities 
needed for programs, logistics, and liability of partnerships with outside agencies.  Efforts will be 
coordinated to increase the capacity of CD employees to conduct research through training in 
research protocols and the development of standard operating procedures (SOP).   
 
As part of research and monitoring efforts, a forum will be created for sharing information statewide.  
A central clearinghouse will be needed to house all research projects and programs that individual 
CDs are participating in, and a process will need to be developed that allows for information to be 
shared easily and effectively, including monitoring tools, research results, case studies, and success 
(or failure) stories. 
 
Partnerships between CDs and with other partners (e.g., WSU, NRCS, private industry, etc.) will be 
critical for the success of monitoring and research efforts.  Part of this effort will be development of 
partnerships, protocols for projects, and programs within Conservation Districts and with outside 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 94 of 147



partners including the understanding of logistics and liabilities involved in partnerships with outside 
agencies including regulatory agencies.   
 
Another important part of effectiveness monitoring will be focused on outreach and education to 
landowners.  CDs will be provided with templates for successful outreach programs including 
development of educational materials and dissemination of information (e.g., newsletters, field days, 
webinars, mailers, and distribution lists).  Success of outreach and education efforts will be measured 
through surveys, land evaluations, and feedback from participants.  Successful outreach materials will 
be shared with Districts through a central clearinghouse.   
 
Coordinate with statewide programs to acknowledge good land owner behavior (certainty program) in 
various areas of conservation (e.g., nutrient management, stream protection, riparian, etc.).  
 
Identify sources of funding for research and monitoring efforts.  Grant funding can be sought from 
outside agencies (e.g., DOE, EPA, and NRCS CIG) or field trials/demonstrations through CSP. 
Establishment of a dedicated funding pool for research will be explored with the Commission.   
 
Core Activities 
 

• Develop tools and SOPs to support monitoring activities 
• Provide organizational support for research projects 
• Identify and coordinate with research partners 
• Coordinate central clearinghouse for monitoring and research activities and results 
• Identify sources of funding for research and demonstration projects 
• Develop templates for outreach and education programs for content delivery to landowners 
 

4. Quality Assurance  
 

Goals: To consistently promote and maintain a high level of proficiency and quality in programs and 
technical assistance across districts. To provide a way to demonstrate quality assurance to our 
partners, including landowners.   

 
It is incumbent upon Districts to consistently maintain a high level of proficiency and quality in 
programs and technical assistance, as well as demonstrate this to our partners, particularly 
landowners.  A Quality Assurance Plan (QAP) is recommended to support and assess each District’s 
performance in the fields of leadership, training, planning, research, and outreach efforts.  A QAP 
would include establishing a defined standard to follow, along with Quality Assurance Reviews 
(QAR) to evaluate the adequacy of the work being done by District technical staff.  
 
The Tech Workgroup, along with local District experts in each of the planning disciplines, could 
assist Districts in setting up, evaluating and adapting plans designed to address the priorities of each 
District and the needs of the local landowners.  An internal process by which Districts can 
consistently ground truth planning and design products also will be established.  Where districts do 
not have the ability to accomplish this, technical staff from neighboring districts could provide 
mentoring and technical adequacy review prior to the work product being released to the landowner 
or other partner.  
 
Core Activities 
 

• Periodic spot-checks, or QARs, of planning and implementation products will be performed.  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 95 of 147



• Where a deficiency is identified, a pathway will be provided to correct the deficiency.   
 

5. Technical Expertise in Statewide Policy and Programs  
 

Goal: Coordinate engagement by CD technical experts in federal, state and local policies and 
programs related to conservation activities. 

 
A wealth of knowledge and experience exists within CDs across the state, in their employees, 
managers, and supervisors.  Great benefit can come from accessing this valuable expertise to help 
inform conservation policy and program development.  

A process will be developed to coordinate district technical engagement in federal, state and local 
conservation policy and program development.  This can include activities such as review of 
proposed technical materials (NRCS, etc.), program procedures, proposed policies, rules and 
regulations development, and feedback on implementation of such activities.  
 
Districts will work together with partners on statewide technical activities.  A clearly defined 
communication system will be established with responsible parties.  Selection and coordination of 
appropriate staff will be conducted by the Tech Workgroup utilizing a catalog of experts (e.g., CD 
staff, mangers, supervisors, WSCC, WACD) assembled for the State (see Strategic Area 1).  
Communication lines will be maintained between the Tech Workgroup, district experts, and partners 
and stakeholder groups (e.g., NRCS, WSDA, EPA, DOE, tribes, DNR, etc.).  Relationships with 
partner agencies and coordinate participation of district experts and stakeholders in policy decisions 
will be maintained.  This will provide a single, clear communication channel for staff participating in 
policy and program processes.  
 
To support the process, a database of case studies of successful policy and program involvement by 
districts will be compiled to demonstrate effectiveness.  Examples include: riparian buffer discussion, 
nutrient management, 3 directors talks, NRCS training coordination, etc.  Documentation of 
involvement and monitoring of outcomes will be used to refine the process and improve response 
time and effectiveness.  
 
Core Activities 

• Develop and maintain relationships with partner and stakeholder groups. 
• Communicate regularly with point people in agencies and CDs. 
• Keep current on topics, issues, policies, and programs around the state.  
• Help maintain catalog of experts 
• Provide regular feedback to partners. 
• Strive to continually improve process. 

 
6. Workload & Budget – FY 2015-2017, TO BE DETERMINED 

 
Goal: Support and staff this effort workload to implement these recommendations.  Below is an 
outline of needs, with some suggestions on how to build out the appropriate staffing: 
1. Face to face meeting of group that drives marketing and outreach campaign 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 96 of 147



 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 4 
 

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 97 of 147



State Conservation Commission Operations

SCC Operations Expenses To Date Balance Remaining Percentages By Object Remaining

Total Total Total Total

Financial Status Report - As of 3/3/14

$2,448,567.00 $1,185,193.00 $1,263,374.00 51.60%

Salaries & Benefits
Contracts
Goods & Services
Travel
Equipment
Retro

Salaries & Benefits
Contracts
Goods & Services
Travel
Equipment
Retro

Salaries & Benefits

Contracts

Goods & Services

Travel

Equipment

Retro

Salaries & Benefits

Contracts

Goods & Services

Travel

Equipment

Retro

Allottment Detail Totalmn1 Expenses To Date Totalmn1 Balance Remaining Total Percentage Remaining Annual  mn1

Salaries & Benefits $1,855,763 Salaries & Benefits $911,525 Salaries & Benefits $944,238  Salaries & Benefits 50.88%

Contracts $99,500 ## Contracts $20,271 Contracts $79,229  Contracts 79.63%

Goods & Services $343,785 ## Goods & Services $167,981 Goods & Services $175,804  Goods & Services 51.14%

Travel $132,000 ## Travel $85,416 Travel $46,584  Travel 35.29%

Equipment $13,500 ## Equipment $0 Equipment $13,500  Equipment 100.00%

Retro $4,019 ## Retro $0 Retro $4,019  Retro 100.00%

Total $2,448,567 Total $1,185,193 Total $1,263,374

NOTES:
Fiscal year 14 operations only,  8 months (66%)completed.

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 98 of 147



State Conservation Commission Grant & Contracts

Programs Expenses To Date Balance Remaining Percentages By Program Remaining

Total Total Total Total

Financial Status Report - As of 3/3/14

$34,882,456.45 $5,063,356.00 $29,819,100.45 85.48%

Category 1 Category 2

Engineering Toxics

TSP State VSP State

Shellfish Non‐Shellfish

CREP  CREP Riparian

CREP CF CREP PIP

Jobs CF Firewise

Irrigation Efficiencies Specialty Crop

Critter Pad Lewis Flood

TSP Federal VSP Federal

Shellfish Federal Non‐Shellfish Federal

RCO Cowiche

Category 1 Category 2

Engineering Toxics

TSP State VSP State

Shellfish Non‐Shellfish

CREP  CREP Riparian

CREP CF CREP PIP

Jobs CF Firewise

Irrigation Efficiencies Specialty Crop

Critter Pad Lewis Flood

TSP Federal VSP Federal

Shellfish Federal Non‐Shellfish Federal

RCO Cowiche

Category 1 Category 2

Engineering Toxics

TSP State VSP State

Shellfish Non‐Shellfish

CREP  CREP Riparian

CREP CF CREP PIP

Jobs CF Firewise

Irrigation Efficiencies Specialty Crop

Critter Pad Lewis Flood

TSP Federal VSP Federal

Shellfish Federal Non‐Shellfish Federal

RCO Cowiche

Category 1 Category 2

Engineering Toxics

TSP State VSP State

Shellfish Non‐Shellfish

CREP  CREP Riparian

CREP CF CREP PIP

Jobs CF Firewise

Irrigation Efficiencies Specialty Crop

Critter Pad Lewis Flood

TSP Federal VSP Federal

Shellfish Federal Non‐Shellfish Federal

RCO Cowiche

Biennial Appropriation Totalmn1 FY 14 Expenses To Date Totalmn1 Balance Remaining Total Percentage Remaining Annual  mn1

Category 1 1,900,000       Category 1 613,377           Category 1 $1,286,623 Category 1 67.72%

Category 2 4,782,500       ## Category 2 1,745,321        Category 2 $3,037,179 Category 2 63.51%

Engineering 1,290,000       ## Engineering 271,117           Engineering $1,018,883 Engineering 78.98%

Toxics 1,000,000       ## Toxics 29,577             Toxics $970,423 Toxics 97.04%

TSP State 650,000          ## TSP State 159,266           TSP State $490,734 TSP State 75.50%

VSP State 546,000          ## VSP State VSP State $546,000 VSP State 100.00%

Shellfish 4,500,000       ## Shellfish 168,988           Shellfish $4,331,012 Shellfish 96.24%

Non‐Shellfish 4,500,000       ## Non‐Shellfish 284,675           Non‐Shellfish $4,215,325 Non‐Shellfish 93.67%

CREP  2,590,000       ## CREP  558,011           CREP  $2,031,989 CREP  78.46%

CREP Riparian 2,231,000       ## CREP Riparian 294,477           CREP Riparian $1,936,523 CREP Riparian 86.80%

CREP CF 850,000          ## CREP CF 259                   CREP CF $849,741 CREP CF 99.97%

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 99 of 147



CREP PIP 180,000          ## CREP PIP 3,932               CREP PIP $176,068 CREP PIP 97.82%

Jobs CF 500,000          ## Jobs CF 23,031             Jobs CF $476,969 Jobs CF 95.39%

Firewise 76,500            ## Firewise 67,594             Firewise $8,906 Firewise 11.64%

Irrigation Efficiencies 5,047,362       ## Irrigation Efficiencies 656,701           Irrigation Efficiencies $4,390,661 Irrigation Efficiencies 86.99%

Specialty Crop 86,556            ## Specialty Crop 2,895               Specialty Crop $83,661 Specialty Crop 0.00%

Critter Pad 237,255          ## Critter Pad 9,166               Critter Pad $228,089 Critter Pad 0.00%

Lewis Flood 137,863          ## Lewis Flood 15,703             Lewis Flood $122,160 Lewis Flood 88.61%

TSP Federal 1,301,000       ## TSP Federal 159,266           TSP Federal $1,141,734 TSP Federal 87.76%

VSP Federal 1,000,000       ## VSP Federal VSP Federal $1,000,000 VSP Federal 100.00%

Shellfish Federal 500,000          ## Shellfish Federal Shellfish Federal $500,000 Shellfish Federal 100.00%

Non‐Shellfish Federal 500,000          ## Non‐Shellfish Federal Non‐Shellfish Federal $500,000 Non‐Shellfish Federal 100.00%

RCO Cowiche 476,421          ## RCO Cowiche RCO Cowiche $476,421  RCO Cowiche  100.00%

Total $34,882,456 # Total $5,063,356 Total $29,819,100

NOTES:
Operating funds (category 1, 2, Engineering, Toxics) are fiscal year 14 only.  These do not include any anticipated awards for FY 15.Operating funds (category 1, 2, Engineering, Toxics) are fiscal year 14 only.  These do not include any anticipated awards for FY 15.

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 100 of 147



Conservation District Grant Status

Grants & Contracts Expenses To Date % Capital vs Operating Percentage Expended

Total Total Of Funds Contracted Total

 Funds Under 
Contract

Operating $ Capital $
 FY 14 Expenses 

TD
Operating $ Capital $  % by Fund

% 
Operating

% 
Capital

 % Expended by 
Fund

% 
Operating

% 
Capital

Adams 97,229$                7,000$           Adams 70,232$               291$              Adams 93.28% 6.72% Adams 72.23% 4.16%

Asotin 85,355$                463,104$       Asotin 35,191$               85,355$         Asotin 15.56% 84.44% Asotin 41.23% 18.43%

Benton 94,382$                143,593$       Benton 69,976$               315$              Benton 39.66% 60.34% Benton 74.14% 0.22%

Cascadia 187,341$              8,800$           Cascadia 111,152$             2,886$           Cascadia 95.51% 4.49% Cascadia 59.33% 32.80%

Central Klickitat 141,033$              37,566$         Central Klickitat 93,970$               2,146$           Central Klickitat 78.97% 21.03% Central Klickitat 66.63% 5.71%

Clallam 128,097$              775,256$       Clallam 64,722$               472,614$       Clallam 14.18% 85.82% Clallam 50.53% 60.96%

Clark 79,986$                74,347$         Clark 60,467$               7,462$           Clark 51.83% 48.17% Clark 75.60% 10.04%

Columbia 79,625$                249,983$       Columbia 32,324$               65,647$         Columbia 24.16% 75.84% Columbia 40.60% 26.26%

Cowlitz 86,326$                120,646$       Cowlitz 52,690$               -$              Cowlitz 41.71% 58.29% Cowlitz 61.04% 0.00%

Eastern Klickitat 66,663$                -$               Eastern Klickitat 59,398$               -$              Eastern Klickitat 100.00% 0.00% Eastern Klickitat 89.10% 0.00%

Ferry 79,974$                60,625$         Ferry 37,028$               3,844$           Ferry 56.88% 43.12% Ferry 46.30% 6.34%

Foster Creek 73,153$                -$               Foster Creek 57,678$               -$              Foster Creek 100.00% 0.00% Foster Creek 78.85% 0.00%

Financial Status Report - As of 3/3/14

$5,110,128.85 $2,954,763.77 57.82%

Franklin 138,498$              206,236$       Franklin 82,381$               4,638$           Franklin 40.18% 59.82% Franklin 59.48% 2.25%

Grant 197,477$              367,506$       Grant 149,863$             15,207$         Grant 34.95% 65.05% Grant 75.89% 4.14%

Grays Harbor 79,875$                6,447$           Grays Harbor 45,530$               -$              Grays Harbor 92.53% 7.47% Grays Harbor 57.00% 0.00%

Jefferson 79,625$                65,855$         Jefferson 30,984$               38,420$         Jefferson 54.73% 45.27% Jefferson 38.91% 58.34%

King 127,048$              197,100$       King 20,553$               25,613$         King 39.19% 60.81% King 16.18% 13.00%

Kitsap 80,170$                106,570$       Kitsap 43,133$               2,262$           Kitsap 42.93% 57.07% Kitsap 53.80% 2.12%

Kittitas 159,625$              1,025,047$    Kittitas 59,170$               116,622$       Kittitas 13.47% 86.53% Kittitas 37.07% 11.38%

Lewis 155,327$              516,020$       Lewis 74,213$               122,296$       Lewis 23.14% 76.86% Lewis 47.78% 23.70%

Lincoln 145,858$              15,069$         Lincoln 106,874$             4,602$           Lincoln 90.64% 9.36% Lincoln 73.27% 30.54%

Mason 213,468$              260,142$       Mason 93,565$               7,226$           Mason 45.07% 54.93% Mason 43.83% 2.78%

North Yakima 148,823$              127,714$       North Yakima 70,624$               23,939$         North Yakima 53.82% 46.18% North Yakima 47.46% 18.74%

Okanogan 111,807$              187,625$       Okanogan 79,782$               31,728$         Okanogan 37.34% 62.66% Okanogan 71.36% 16.91%

Pacific 85,186$                64,089$         Pacific 51,083$               21,101$         Pacific 57.07% 42.93% Pacific 59.97% 32.92%

Palouse 94,424$                64,625$         Palouse 52,462$               3,316$           Palouse 59.37% 40.63% Palouse 55.56% 5.13%

Palouse Rock-Lake 74,070$                5,638$           Palouse Rock-Lake 50,811$               -$              Palouse Rock-Lake 92.93% 7.07% Palouse Rock-Lake 68.60% 0.00%

Pend Oreille 80,125$                112,763$       Pend Oreille 64,949$               553$              Pend Oreille 41.54% 58.46% Pend Oreille 81.06% 0.49%

Pierce 126,937$              33,984$         Pierce 72,747$               -$              Pierce 78.88% 21.12% Pierce 57.31% 0.00%

Pine Creek 74,990$                -$               Pine Creek 55,238$               -$              Pine Creek 100.00% 0.00% Pine Creek 73.66% 0.00%, ,
03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 101 of 147



Pomeroy 148,070$              97,277$         Pomeroy 75,999$               57,781$         Pomeroy 60.35% 39.65% Pomeroy 51.33% 59.40%

San Juan 89,932$                97,000$         San Juan 80,023$               -$              San Juan 48.11% 51.89% San Juan 88.98% 0.00%

Skagit 226,386$              532,905$       Skagit 191,344$             177,352$       Skagit 29.82% 70.18% Skagit 84.52% 33.28%

Snohomish 182,859$              411,366$       Snohomish 104,456$             45,336$         Snohomish 30.77% 69.23% Snohomish 57.12% 11.02%

South Douglas 64,940$                -$               South Douglas 14,112$               -$              South Douglas 100.00% 0.00% South Douglas 21.73% 0.00%

South Yakima 67,125$                443,750$       South Yakima 34,127$               26,223$         South Yakima 13.14% 86.86% South Yakima 50.84% 5.91%

Spokane 79,625$                600$              Spokane 14,044$               600$              Spokane 99.25% 0.75% Spokane 17.64% 100.00%

Stevens 154,931$              -$               Stevens 55,449$               -$              Stevens 100.00% 0.00% Stevens 35.79% 0.00%

Thurston 101,500$              7,154$           Thurston 40,606$               2,654$           Thurston 93.42% 6.58% Thurston 40.01% 37.10%

Underwood 79,850$                160,353$       Underwood 42,906$               3,127$           Underwood 33.24% 66.76% Underwood 53.73% 1.95%

Wahkiakum 85,313$                127,689$       Wahkiakum 63,036$               5,173$           Wahkiakum 40.05% 59.95% Wahkiakum 73.89% 4.05%

Walla Walla 82,152$                272,101$       Walla Walla 44,947$               112,382$       Walla Walla 23.19% 76.81% Walla Walla 54.71% 41.30%

Whatcom 219,320$              901,690$       Whatcom 152,563$             481,029$       Whatcom 19.56% 80.44% Whatcom 69.56% 53.35%

Whidbey Island 87,871$                271,323$       Whidbey Island 54,075$               14,501$         Whidbey Island 24.46% 75.54% Whidbey Island 61.54% 5.34%

Whitman 67,759$                1,380$           Whitman 38,287$               351$              Whitman 98.00% 2.00% Whitman 56.50% 25.44%

Total 5,110,128.85$ 8,627,937$   Total 2,954,764$      1,984,592$   

NOTES:NOTES:
Operating is Fiscal Year 14 Only
Operating consists of: Category 1, Category 2, TSP State, TSP Fed

Capital ‐ as awarded so far
Capital consists of: Non‐Shellfish, Shellfish, Livestock TA, CREP CS, CREP TA

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 102 of 147



5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 85% 90% 95% 100%

Adams

Asotin

Benton

Cascadia

Benton

Cascadia

Central Klickitat

Clallam

Clark

Columbia

Cowlitz

Eastern Klickitat

F

Cowlitz

Eastern Klickitat

Ferry

Foster Creek

Franklin

Grant

Grays Harbor

Jefferson % Spending
Grays Harbor

Jefferson

King

Kitsap

Kittitas

Lewis

Lincoln

Mason

% Spending
By

Fund 
% Operating

% Capital

Lincoln

Mason

North Yakima

Okanogan

Pacific

Palouse

Palouse Rock‐Lake

Pend Oreille

Pi

% Operating

% Capital

indicates  % of FY 
completed

Palouse Rock‐Lake

Pend Oreille

Pierce

Pine Creek

Pomeroy

San Juan

Skagit

Snohomish

Skagit

Snohomish

South Douglas

South Yakima

Spokane

Stevens

Thurston

Underwood

Thurston

Underwood

Wahkiakum

Walla Walla

Whatcom

Whidbey Island

WhitmanWhitman

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 103 of 147



0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 85% 90% 95% 100%

Adams

Asotin

Benton

Cascadia

Central Klickitat

Clallam

Clark

Columbia

Cowlitz

Eastern Klickitat

Ferry

Foster Creek

Franklin

Grant

Grays Harbor

Jefferson

King

Kitsap

Kittitas

Lewis

Lincoln

Mason

North Yakima

Ok

North Yakima

Okanogan

Pacific

Palouse

Palouse Rock‐Lake

Pend Oreille

Pierce

Pine Creek

Pomeroy

San Juan

Skagit

Snohomish

South Douglas

South Yakima

Spokane

Stevens

Thurston

Underwood

Wahkiakum

Walla Walla

Whatcom

Whidbey Island

Whitman

% Fund Type by District  (operating + capital = 100%) % Operating % Capital

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 104 of 147



 
 

March 7, 2014 
 
TO:  Conservation Commission Members 
 
FR:  Appeals SubCommittee 
 Larry Davis 
 Jim Kropf 
 Clinton O’Keefe 
 Alan Stromberger 
 Debbie Becker, staff 
 
RE:  Non-Shellfish funding Appeals Report and Recommendations 

 
Background 
The Appeals Subcommittee appointed during the January Commission meeting was comprised of Clinton O’Keefe, Larry 
Davis, Jim Kropf, and Alan Stromberger.  The Appeals were heard on February 18.   
 
SCC staff notified the 16 conservation districts by January 31st of their ability to appeal the previous subcommittee review 
process.  (This notification material is included for your reference.)  These 16 conservation districts had a total of 47 
practices which were eligible for appeal.  When the notifications went out to the districts they were sent to the following: 
District Manager, District Chair, SCC Regional Manager, and SCC Executive Director, Mark Clark. 
 
Of the 47 possible appeals, only 6 submitted the request for an appeal. They were: Palouse, Benton, Lewis, Kittitas, 
North Yakima #1, and North Yakima #2. 
 
Appeal Process 

 The appeal process provided 10 minutes for the district to provide insight into the situation. 
 A supervisor was required to be present and involved in the conversation.  
 For a practice entered after July 1 and appealed, the district was required to have a trade of a practice 

previously awarded funding.  
 
Recommendation and Action Required 
The recommendation from the subcommittee requires formal adoption by the full Commission.  The Commission 
members may accept the subcommittee’s recommendation or establish another decision.  This decision of the full 
Commission would be final and the district notified of the outcome immediately following the meeting. 
 

1. Palouse – Approve 
2. Benton – Conditionally Approve, must provide a list of landowners committed to the irrigation conversion practice 

by the March Commission meeting.  
3. Kittitas – Approve for initial eligible appeal of priority #3.  Refer to Commission the landowner/district request to 

change to priority #13. 
4. Lewis – Approve 
5. North Yakima 1 – Technical No, not a capital investment – recommend longer term discussion and potential 

funding 
6. North Yakima 2 – Technical No, not a capital investment - recommend longer term discussion and potential 

funding 03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 105 of 147



 
 
 
 
January 31, 2014 
 
TO:  
  
  
 
FR: Mark Clark 
 Executive Director 
 
RE: CPDS Project Status and Opportunity for an Appeal 

 
 
The Conservation Commission received $4.5 million in July, 2012 for practices related to improving water 
quality.  Since March 2013, members of the Commission have taken steps to plan for, and ultimately approve 
the allocations according to the budget language passed by the Legislature. 
 
The purpose of this letter is to provide you a list of projects your district included in the CPDS system which 
are eligible for appeal.  For your reference, I’ve included all the necessary background and policies adopted by 
the Commissioners related to this funding.  You will also see below a process for appeal which was adopted by 
the Commission on January 16, 2014.   
 
Conservation District projects eligible for appeal: 
Priority #1 – Noxious Weed Control  
 Not an identified water quality definition linkage 
  Not a brick and mortar project. 
Priority #2 – Noxious Weed Control  
 Not an identified water quality definition linkage 
  Not a brick and mortar project. 
Priority #3 – entered after July 1 
 
In order to submit your request for appeal, you must use the following link to complete the appeal 
form.  It is required to be submitted by close of business, Monday, February 10th.  Any forms received 
after the close date will not be considered.   https://adobeformscentral.com/?f=LcvGF5RScLk7vntup7-1Cg 
 
Appeal Process: 
Appeals Subcommittee – Commissioners Larry Davis, Clinton O’Keefe, Alan Stromberger and Jim Kropf 
Motion by Commissioner O’Keefe to approve the appeals process as follows and will include the following 
steps: 

 Notification to the conservation district by the executive director why the practice was denied. 
 Provide the opportunity for the conservation district to appeal the decision.  
 The appeal may be in person or via telephone by a supervisor and staff. The appeal time limit is 10 

minutes.  

Copy of Materials 
Sent To Eligible 
Conservation Districts

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 106 of 147



 The subcommittee appealed decisions will be presented to the CC for final action at the March 
Commission meeting. 

 Appeals decisions will be made in writing to the CD after the March Commission meeting. 
 

Any appeal of a practice entered after July 1, 2013, must meet the following criteria: 

 Was the practice one the subcommittee reviewed and did not approve? 
 Is there a subsequent letter to the Commission asking for consideration of the practice? 
 Appeals of practices entered after July 1, must have approved practices approved within the pre-

July 1 criteria to trade. 
 

All notifications of decision on practices will be mailed by February 1, 2014.  The appeals hearing would 
be held in advance of the March 2014 Commission meeting with a full report provided on March 20, 
2014.  

Commissioner Davis seconded. Motion passed. 

 
 
Additional Background and Information 
 
September 2013 Commission meeting 
Motion by Commissioner Brown that projects for the purpose of converting flood to sprinkler irrigation are 
water quality eligible and are to be funded as part of the first round of prioritized funding. Commissioner 
Bahrych seconded. Motion passed.  
 
Motion by Commissioner Brown that the SCC allocate based on the instructions sent out to districts that 
the first 1 and 2 priorities that met the date and criteria. Second, continue the process with the remaining 
projects 1 and 2 for each district with the three person committee and staff deciding whether it is 
allowable as a program or project and consider if these programs may be used with capital money.  
Commissioner Brown amended to take out the second, and fund all of the remaining projects that meet 
the date and criteria; and then have the three person committee and staff to consider all the postdated 
entries and questionable programs vs. projects capital vs non capital. Commissioner Bahrych seconded. 
Motion passed as amended. 
 
Commission Subcommittee will review each district’s prioritized list. 
First, identify projects entered prior to July 1, 2013. 

 Projects entered after July 1, 2013 are not eligible for funding in this round, but will be retained for 
potential future funding opportunities. 

 Next, projects that are shellfish related will be set aside for potential funding from the shellfish 
fund. 

 Review the remaining proposed landowner projects for water quality eligibility. 
 The definitions identified above will be used to evaluate proposed activities for water quality 

eligibility. 
 If not eligible, set aside for review if eligible for toxics account funding. If not eligible for toxics 

account funding then the activity is not eligible for funding from these fund sources. But the item 
will be kept in the system for possible future funding from other sources. They may also for the 
basis for a supplemental budget request or a request in the 2015-17 biennium. 

 Review the district list for those priorities that are for an individual landowner. If no, not eligible for 
funding at this time. 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 107 of 147



 
July 2013 Commission meeting  
Motion by Commissioner Brown to accept the staff proposal to authorize Category 3 project funding for 
the top 2 priorities as identified by each district in a district prioritization process with local justification of 
priorities utilizing the July 1, 2013 project listing. Seconded by Commissioner O’Keefe. Motion passed. 

 
September 2013 Commission meeting 
The following paragraph contains information provided to Conservation Commission members at the 
September 2013 Commission meeting: 
Water Quality Funding 

The second “bucket” of funding is for those activities related to water quality. There is no specific 
definition of “water quality” in the budget or state statute but there are other related definitions that are 
helpful. 
 
It is the policy of the state to “exercise its powers…to retain and secure high quality for all waters of the 
state.” RCW 90.48.010 Also, it’s the policy of the state “to maintain the highest possible standards to 
insure the purity of all waters of the state…and to require the use of all known available and reasonable 
methods…to prevent and control the pollution of the waters of the state of Washington”. RCW 90.48.010 
 
"Water pollution" is defined as “…contamination, or other alteration of the physical, chemical, or 
biological properties of any waters of the state…or is likely to create a nuisance or render such waters 
harmful, detrimental, or injurious to the public health, safety, or welfare, or to domestic, commercial, 
industrial, agricultural, recreational, or other legitimate beneficial uses, or to livestock, wild animals, birds, 
fish, or other aquatic life.” 
 
"Water pollution control activities" is defined as “…actions taken … for the following purposes: 
 

 (a) To prevent or mitigate pollution of underground water; (b) to control nonpoint sources of water 
pollution; (c) to restore the water quality of freshwater lakes; and (d) to maintain or improve water quality 
through the use of water pollution control facilities or other means.” 
RCW 70.146.020 
 
Activities entered into the CPDS and considered for this water quality capital funding must be consistent 
with the definitions identified above. 
 
Appendices’ attached to this memo: 
  

1. Category 3 funding policy approved, May 2013. 
2. Prioritization Process for Projects in CPDS System approved, July 2013. 
3. Memo dated January 9, 2014 to Commission Members. 

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 108 of 147



Washington State Conservation Commission 

 

 

PURPOSE  

This policy outlines basic elements associated with the Category 3 funding for conservation 
districts. 
 

BACKGROUND  

All districts are required to enter projects into the CPDS system for consideration of funding 
when budgets are passed by the Legislature. Based upon conservation district entries, in 
August 2012, the agency submitted a budget request for $33 million. During the May 2013 
Commission meeting, in anticipation of a Capital Budget being passed by the Legislature, 
the Commission adopted changes to the Category 3 allocation. 
 
 

POLICY  

1. Maximum cost share per land owner per fiscal year is $50,000. 
 

2. All Practices must meet NRCS standards and specifications, be in compliance with cost 
share policies and the management practice implementation guidance policy adopted by 
the Conservation Commission in 2013.  
 
a. Engineering services are in addition with a maximum of 5% of cost share value 

awarded. 
b. Technical assistance of conservation district staff is in addition with a maximum of 

10% of cost share value awarded.  
c. Travel costs are in addition with a maximum of 2.5% of cost share value awarded. 
d. Cultural Resources investigations are in addition to the cost share value awarded. 

Several options are being investigated to reduce the costs. Until some resolution to 
other options, Conservation districts are encouraged to reach out to NRCS and/or 
the local tribes to assist with these investigations. Conservation districts are 
encouraged to provide the tribal representatives the list of investigations needed, 
well in advance of the timeframe to begin moving dirt for an eligible practice.  

e. Overhead allowance can be charged against the salaries and benefits within the 
limits identified in (a) and (b) of the staff working on the project to a maximum of 25% 
(the allowable rate). 

f. Education and Outreach expenses are not allowed to be funded under Category 3 
funds.  

g. Irrigation Efficiencies projects and CREP projects not selected for funding within the 
programmatic limits of the applicable program, may be considered for funding within 
the category 3 funds.  
 

Policy # 13-25 Category 3 Policy 

Applies to: All Conservation Districts 

Effective Date: May 16, 2013 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 109 of 147



WSCC Policy #13-25  2 
 

3. All previously approved policy and procedures remain in place.  
 

4. If a dispute arises over eligibility or expense, the executive director of the State 
Conservation Commission has the authority to review a project and make a 
determination of funding.  
 

5. Projects which come in under budget must return funds to the Conservation 
Commission so they may be allocated to the next eligible practice.   
 

6. Beginning July 1, 2013, funding awarded under this category will have 18 months to 
reach completion. However, significant movement on the project must begin within 90 
days of the funding allocation. 
 

7. A rolling 18 month time frame will be used until further notice or until 6 months of the 
end of the 13-15 biennium. 

 

Project Funding Selection 

To be eligible for project funding, the practice must be entered into the CPDS system and 
titled Category 3. It must contain a completed and approved WSCC Cost Share application. 
The project will be selected for funding by date entered, starting with the oldest date.  
If the particular practice chosen by date is not going to move forward due to landowner 
decisions, the conservation district may choose one project on their list that may be of 
higher priority (within the funding authorized).  
 
If the alternate practice is not to move forward due to landowner decisions, the funding 
opportunity is withdrawn and will be used for the next eligible practice chosen by date 
entered.  
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 110 of 147



PRIORITIZATION PROCESS FOR PROJECTS IN CPDS SYSTEM 
 
Projects and practices must be consistent with the Category 3 Policy criteria adopted by the Conservation Commission. A 
copy of this policy is attached for reference.  General limitations found in the policy include:   

• Maximum of $50,000 per landowner per project, per fiscal year.  
• Irrigation Efficiencies and CREP projects do not qualify for this funding. 

 
While this initial prioritization is to be done on projects entered on July 1, or before, please continue to enter 
your projects as they become available.  A ‘project’ may include more than one practice that makes up the 
‘project’ for the same cooperator and still remains under the $50,000.  It is also important for the system to be 
updated with information relating to the completion of projects. Your regional manager will have a copy of the 
most recent report pulled from the CPDS system. 
 
Make sure the project and practice are entered according to the CPDS user guide, then follow these additional 
steps: 

1) The date the practice was entered must be July 1, 2013 or before.  You can edit existing practices, but the created date 
must reflect July 1 or before. You can locate the created date near the bottom of the practice details tab. This field is 
not able to be edited. 

2) Go to the Practice Details tab and enter the numerical value of the conservation district’s board decision in the Priority 
data field.  This should be a numerical entry, 1,2,3, etc.  Identify the same priority number for each practice making up 
a single project.   

3) Enter the Date Prioritized in the data field next to the priority number. Use the calendar icon to choose the date. This 
ensures it is formatted correctly. Please use the date you entered the prioritization.  

4) On the same tab and in the practice description text box, describe why this is the particular priority and the water 
quality issue to be resolved.  

This information will be used to inform the Legislature of your district’s process in determining water quality 
projects of most importance and the role of local decision making processes.  

If you already have text entered in the practice description text box, please enter the description we need, 
above that text already entered. 

5) Your Priority 1 and Priority 2 projects may begin upon notification of funding. 

6) Provide before pictures on the photo tab at the project level. 

7) If this is a shellfish project, go to the Project Details tab and click shellfish in the aquatic benefits box.   

8) On the same tab in the Benefits Description Box, describe the shellfish concern and project benefits in detail. 

NOTE:   The Commission will determine whether a project will be funded from the “shellfish” dedicated funds, or 
the “non-shellfish” funds. 

9) When your top 2 projects have been identified, send an email to: Commission@scc.wa.gov 

10) Please continue to prioritize the remaining projects you have entered into the CPDS system, in accordance with the 
steps identified above. 

11) Please complete the entire prioritization and updates by September 6, 2013. 

12) If you have a project the conservation district board of supervisors has identified as a priority 1 or priority 2, and it is 
entered after July 1, 2013.  Please send a letter to the Mark Clark, Executive Director of the State Conservation 
Commission at the following address: Commission@scc.wa.gov   

Include in the letter the reason the project was not entered prior to July 1, describe the water quality issue, 
the practices needing installed, when the project will begin and will be finished. If this is the result of a 
regulatory referral, attach a copy of the referral. 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 111 of 147

mailto:Commission@scc.wa.gov
mailto:Commission@scc.wa.gov


 

 
 

January 9, 2014 
 
TO: Conservation Commission Members 
  
 
FROM: Mark Clark, Executive Director  
 
SUBJECT: Non Shellfish Funding Briefing 

 
Summary:  
 
The Water Quality Funding Subcommittee changed two members during the December 
Commission meeting.  Commissioners Brown and Bahrych were added, replacing 
Commissioners Guenther and Susewind.  Commissioners Brown and Bahrych join 
Commissioner Tuttle on the subcommittee to evaluate category practices submitted by 
conservation districts.  
  
The Water Quality Funding Subcommittee met with Mark Clark and Debbie Becker of 
the Commission staff on Thursday, December 12, 2013 to evaluate the rankings and 
discuss the available funding and the development of an appeals process. 
 
The following actions and recommendations were addressed: 
• All of the available funds in the Non-Shellfish account have been allocated. 

o Projects were funded based on the following criteria:  
 a water quality project 
 a brick and mortar project 
 created on or before July 1, 2013 
 funding was awarded by practice. 

o If a supplemental budget is approved by the legislature adding livestock 
technical assistance, this would free up and additional amount of funding to 
allocate for practices in this system.   

o We also expect an amount of funds returned by districts who may not utilize 
all the available technical assistance, mileage, engineering, and overhead 
allowances included in their allocation.  

o As these funds become available, the Commission will determine the 
approach on allocation. Any decision processes relating to this will be sent to 
all conservation districts.  

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 112 of 147



There are several unknown expenditures that could be necessary to address from the 
Non-Shellfish funding. We are currently only 6 months into a 24 month funding cycle for 
these funds. The projected unknowns are numerous and could likely exceed $2 million.  
These include: 

 cultural resource investigations, 
 appeals of practices not funded prior to July 1, 
 appeals of practices funded after July 1,  
 practices from shellfish districts which do not meet the shellfish criteria, 

but meet the water quality criteria, 
 livestock technical assistance for FY15, if not funded through supplemental 

budget, and 
 any unanticipated requests. 

 
The dashboard of detail on the following page illustrates the breakdown of the $4.5 
million including the projected appeals and unknown costs.  
 
The subcommittee also addressed the opportunity for an official appeals process for the 
conservation districts. This process would allow the district to present their issues 
regarding a practice not selected for funding, and why it should be awarded the 
necessary funds.  
 
The appeals process will include the following steps: 
 Notification to the conservation district by the executive director why the practice 

was denied. 
 Provide the opportunity for the conservation district to appeal the decision.  
 The appeal may be in person or via telephone. 
 The appeal time limit is 10 minutes.  
 Notification of the official decision would be made in writing to the conservation 

district.  
Any appeal of a practice entered after July 1, 2013, must meet the following criteria: 
 Was the practice one the subcommittee reviewed and did not approve? 
 Is there a subsequent letter to the Commission asking for consideration of the 

practice? 
 Appeals of practices entered after July 1, must have approved practices approved 

within the pre-July 1 criteria to trade. 
 
All notifications of decision on practices will be mailed by February 1, 2014.  The appeals 
hearing would be held in advance of the March 2014 Commission meeting with a full 
report provided on March 20, 2014. 
 
Staff Contact:   Mark Clark  (360) 407-6201  mclark@scc.wa.gov 
 
Action Requested: Approval of the Appeals Process 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 113 of 147

mailto:mclark@scc.wa.gov


 

 
 

 
March 11, 2014 
 
TO: Conservation Commission Members 
 Mark Clark, Executive Director 
 
FROM: Ron Shultz, Policy Director 
 
SUBJECT: Shellfish Funding Update 
 

 
Summary:  Funding from the shellfish related capital budget continues to be 
distributed.  Below is a status of the account and funding. 
 
Action Requested:   None, information only. 
 
Staff Contacts:   Ron Shultz, Policy Director  (360) 407-7507   rshultz@scc.wa.gov 
 
 
Description: 
 

Total Shellfish Capital Funds: $4,500,000 
 

Total Requested by Districts: $2,285,914 
 

Total Authorized1: $1,854,960 
 

Total Allocated2: $1,478,163 
 
 
Allocation by District 
 

Clallam $157,625 
 

King $121,250 
 

Kitsap $106,570 
 

Mason $229,742 
 

Pierce $33,984 
 

1   “Total Authorized” means the proposed project has been reviewed and found to meet the criteria for a shellfish 
funded project. 
 
2   “Total Allocated” means funds have been made available to the district. 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 114 of 147



San Juan $97,000 
 

Skagit $276,440 
 

Snohomish $327,375 
 

Whatcom $60,625 
 

Whidbey $171,323 
 
 

Pacific and Grays Harbor CDs are eligible for shellfish funding and have projects in the 
CPDS system.  However, more detailed work with district staff will be needed to identify 
allowable projects and funding needs.  Commission staff will be assisting the districts in 
this process. 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 115 of 147



            
March 10, 2014 
 
TO:  Conservation District Supervisors and Staff 
 
FROM: Mark Clark, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT:  2015-17 Biennium Budget Development Process  
            
            
We have begun the budget building process for the 2015-17 biennium, and I wanted to 
update you on a bit of history and where we are headed.  
 
This is an effort to move the ideas forward from the July 20/21 meeting with conservation 
districts in Yakima, which addressed current budget improvement, local and state natural 
resource priorities, and a great list of additional funding ideas.  WACD developed several 
resolutions around the budget process and they were adopted at their annual meeting in 
December.   
 
The Commission at its January meeting reviewed concepts for developing the biennial 
budget, including the WACD resolutions.  The Commission took action on those resolutions, 
which when combined, helped establish a framework for identifying a budget development 
process.  The Commission directed staff to put together proposals for a budget framework 
and process for review at the March Commission meeting.  Below is the work done on that 
framework.  It was developed by a work group consisting of Commission staff, Dave Vogel, 
Jim Jesernig, and Kathleen Whalen.   
 
Although the state economy is improving and state revenues are increasing, there is still 
significant pressure on the budget due to requirements to fund K-12 education.  This issue 
has the potential to make funding for natural resource agencies a continuing concern.  As a 
result, the budget work group believes any budget development process must be both 
defensible and compelling. 
 
Therefore, in order to develop options for the proposed 2015-2017 budget framework, we 
propose a two-day, all-districts budget development meeting in April, collectively sponsored 
by WSCC, WACD, and WADE. Invitations to sit on the Operating and Capital budget work 
groups will be sent to the 27 district supervisors and staff that volunteered during the 20/21 
meetings to champion this budget framework and process development work.  We also 
encourage anyone who is interested in this meeting to participate. Commission staff will be 
available to facilitate the session and working groups. 
 
The first day would consist of an opening session to review the work plan and break into 
working groups (described on page2 of this memo).  On day two, participants would tackle 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 116 of 147



allocation and next steps, including communications, and then a review meeting would be set 
sometime in August.  
 
The desired outcome of the meeting is to have the budget framework filled in with options 
for the Commission to consider and take action at their May meeting. 
 
Operating Budget Background and Development 
The operating budget provides funding for administrative and programmatic activities.  There 
are two general areas of operating needs: (1) Conservation Commission agency activities, 
and (2) conservation district activities.  Operating funds are allocated by, and must be used 
within the state fiscal year running from July 1 to June 30.  Funds not spent in the fiscal year 
cannot be carried over into the next fiscal year.  Generally, operating funds can be used for 
staffing, administrative costs (such as facilities, supplies, etc), and programs (such as 
outreach and education). Operating funds can sometimes be used as match for other fund 
sources, depending on funder requirements.   
 
The approach proposed by the budget development work group for development of the 
operating budget is: 
 

1. As a base budget, each district would receive the same allocation the district received 
in FY 2014 for each fiscal year of the 2015-17 biennium.   
 

2. A district may apply for additional funding beyond the baseline, not to exceed 20% of 
the base.  The process for the application for funding and the criteria are to be 
developed. 
 

3. The base budget for conservation districts will be divided among functional 
“buckets,” such as operations and administration, engineering, financial services, 
education and outreach, programs, and resource planning and technical assistance.  
The final categorization and description of each “bucket” (or category) will be 
developed by a committee of district supervisors, district staff, and Commission staff. 
 

4. Commission staff will develop a proposed agency activity operating budget to be 
submitted to Commission members as part of the complete budget package. 

 
Capital Budget Background and Development 
Capital funds generally are allocated for on-the-ground projects.  A portion of project costs 
may be used to support staffing needs and overhead, in support of the project.  On very rare 
occasions, capital funds may be used for staff, planning activities, or programmatic activities.  
Typically, for project funding in the legislature, a project list is developed where projects are 
scored and ranked.  The legislative funding committees review this ranked list of projects and 
identify the overall funding level.   
 
For conservation districts, the capital budget has historically funded categories of activities, 
such as water quality, shellfish, CREP, or livestock, without providing a list of projects.  
Some believe this is detrimental to the success of capital funding because it’s contrary to how 
other entities develop a capital budget.  The argument in support of the current “category 
approach” is it’s difficult to score and rank conservation district projects on a statewide scale.  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 117 of 147



Also, some districts feel it’s impractical to take a “list approach” because districts identify 
and develop projects in a more opportunistic manner based on landowner availability and 
interest.   
 
The budget development work group recommends that some form of ranking process be 
developed, possibly along a set of project “buckets.”  A capital budget work group will be 
established to define the buckets and to develop common criteria to rank the projects in each 
bucket.   
 
The budget development work group suggests the buckets include:   
 

• Water quality 
• Small forestry resources 
• Water quantity 
• Soil 
• Livestock 

  
Programmatic Funding 

We have wrestled for several years with what we call programmatic funding.  Examples 
include irrigation water management, rain barrel programs, noxious weed control, small 
farms, and bio weed control.  We propose the groups identified below develop criteria around 
how these programs will be funded. Some could fall under capital funding while others might 
fit under operating or other funding sources. 
  
Allocation  

What happens if the Commission and districts don’t get the funding level we asked for from 
the Legislature?  During the two-day session in April, we will bring work groups together 
and develop options for the Commission to consider. 
 
List of Work Groups 

In an effort to remain clear and concise about the work groups mentioned throughout this 
memo, here is an outline of each group and its expectations: 

• Budget Development – Includes leadership from WACD, WADE, and the State 
Conservation Commission.  This group has met and developed these preliminary 
ideas for the 2015-17 biennium budget development. 

• Operating Budget – Discuss and evaluate the approach proposed by the budget 
development work group for development of the operating budget. 
 

• Capital Budget – Define the buckets suggested by the budget development work 
group and develop common criteria to rank the projects in each bucket.  
 

For the Programmatic Funding and Allocation- we propose instead of creating an additional 
work group specifically for programmatic funding and allocation, we include these elements 
in the discussions of the Operating and Capital Budget work groups. These work groups will 
be asked to include these elements in their presentations to the larger group at the all-districts 
session. 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 118 of 147



 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 5 
 

 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 119 of 147



 

 
2013 WACD Passed Resolutions Relating to WSCC 

Resolution 
Number Resolution WSCC Action 

WACD Resolutions Relating to Agency Partnerships and Coordination 
2013-04 Buffer Width Compliance (pg. 122)  

2013-013 Request that WACD and WSCC include Resolution no. 08-003 in their discussions with 
Department of Ecology (pg. 123) 

 

2013-19 
State Conservation Commission Agency Partnership Agreements to Expand Existing Sources of 
Funding for Conservation (pg. 124) 

 

2013-21 Collaborative Agency Program Agreements for Natural Resources Management: EPA 319 Non-
Point Source Pollution Plan for the State of Washington (pg. 125) 

 

2013-22 
Collaborative Agency Program Agreements for Natural Resources Management: Irrigation 
Efficiencies Grant Program as a model for interagency program agreement for natural resources 
Management (pgs. 126-127) 

 

2013-23  Conditioned Practices (pg. 128-129) Discussed at December 2013 
meeting 

WACD Resolutions Relating to Agriculture and Water Quality 
2013-01 Lemire case on agricultural operations (pgs. 130-131)  

2013-11 Recommendations Addressing Ecology Letters to Producers (pg. 132-133)  

WACD Resolutions Relating to Budget 

2013-08 

 
Utilizing Category 3 Funds to Pool Cost Share Dollars for Providing Financial Assistance to 
Numerous Cooperators When Completing the Same Practice (pg. 134) 
*Motion by Commissioner Brown to work on a way to implement the recommendation of the 
WACD resolution 2013-08. Commissioner Stromberger seconded. Motion passed*  
 

Discussed at January 
Commission Meeting  
(see motion to left) 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 120 of 147



2013-12 Request That WSCC Reallocate Category 1 Funding to Districts in Multiple District Counties 
That Are Efficient and Practicing Administrative Efficiencies (pg. 135)  

2013-15 

Conservation Budget Development and Allocation Process Improvements (pg. 136) 
*Motion by Commissioner Davis that the WSCC establish a budget development process that 
has a clear linkage between the bullets identified within the recommendations of the WACD 
resolution 2013-15. Seconded by Commissioner Brown.  Motion passed* 
 

Discussed at January 
Commission Meeting  
(see motion to left) 

2013-16 

Conservation Budget Development Strategy (pgs. 137-138) 
*Motion by Commissioner Brown to pursue the spirit of WACD resolution 2013-16 in the 
budget and allocation process. Commissioner O’Keefe seconded. Motion passed. Four yes and 
three nay vote* 
 

Discussed at January 
Commission Meeting  
(see motion to left) 

2013-17 Consolidation and Budget Issue Separation (pg. 139)  

2013-18 Long-Term Conservation Funding Opportunities (pg. 140-141)  

2013-20 

Harmonizing Local and State Natural Resource Priorities (with special consideration to 
connection to budget development process) (pgs. 142-143) 
* Motion by Commissioner O’Keefe to pursue the spirit of the recommendations of WACD 
Resolution 2013-20. Seconded by Commissioner Brown. Motion passed* 
 

Discussed at January 
Commission Meeting  
(see motion to left) 

WACD Resolutions Relating to Consolidation 

2013-02 
WACD and WSCC work with the Washington State Legislature, the Washington State 
Conservation Commission and the Office of Financial Management to ensure that District 
Consolidation remains a voluntary action of the boards involved. (pgs. 144-145) 

 

2013-07 WACD Consolidation Policy (pg. 146) 
 

WACD Resolutions Relating to District Communication 

2013-06 Communicating the Work of Conservation Districts with the General Public (pg. 147) 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 121 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-04 
 
Title: Buffer Width Compliance 
 
Problem: 
 Washington agriculture and cattle producers are working toward compliance with current 
Department of Ecology requirements for streamside buffers adjacent to crop lands and grazing 
areas. Much progress has been made but there are still areas around the state that have yet to 
implement the required streamside buffers and exclusionary watering facilities for a variety of 
reasons, not least of which is economic. 
 
 The conservation districts have been working hard to assist landowners with 
implementation but have been met with some resistance because of lack of any assurance from 
DOE that if they were to proceed with implementation of the current size requirement for 
buffers, that DOE would not at some later date determine that buffer size needs be increased. 
 
Recommendation: 
 The Washington Association of Conservation Districts and the Washington State 
Conservation Commission work with the Department of Ecology to assure that all buffers 
installed at the current width requirement be considered in full compliance of the DOE 
requirements for acceptable conservation levels and would be grandfathered in as continuing to 
be in full compliance.  
 
Submitted by:  Spokane Conservation District 
 
Recommend Do Pass as Amended by the Natural Resources Committee 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED AS AMENDED. 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 122 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-13 
 
Title:  Request that WACD and WSCC include Resolution no. 08-003 in their discussions with 
Department of Ecology 
 
Problem: 
 Resolution number 08-003, which calls for Department of Ecology to allow temporary 
water withdrawals for the purpose of irrigating riparian plantings to aid in establishment, is on 
file as being passed.  It is unclear what has been done to fulfill the request of the resolution.  
With the new leadership in Ecology, and WSCC and WACD making efforts to improve 
relationships with Department of Ecology, now is a good time to follow-up on this request. 
Currently Ecology is pushing for wider buffers on streams; it makes sense to allow limited 
irrigation of the plants to ensure success of the investment in buffer development.  The ongoing 
dynamics of buffer width discussion provides the best opportunity to follow up on this 
resolution. 
 
Recommendation: 
 WACD and the Commission use the current discussions with Ecology to allow temporary 
water withdrawals for riparian planting irrigation. 
 
Submitted by:  Central Klickitat Conservation District 
 
Recommend Do Pass As Amended by the Natural Resources Policy Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED AS AMENDED. 
 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 123 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-19 
 

Title: State Conservation Commission Agency Partnership Agreements to Expand Existing 
Sources of Funding for Conservation 
 
Problem: 
 Conservation funding is a top priority.  WACD’s Past Presidents Task Force 
recommended in 2012 that opportunities be explored to increase state and federal funds in 
existing state agency programs going to conservation districts through the State Conservation 
Commission to put conservation on the ground.  The task force recognized that an effective 
mechanism is lacking to help state agencies accomplish their conservation goals through 
collaboration with the State Conservation Commission and conservation districts, and 
recommended that this be accomplished through interagency cooperative agreements.  
 
Recommendation: 
 WACD will request that WSCC develop expanded agency partnership agreements, to 
explore increasing funding to conservation districts via expansion or re-direction of existing state 
and federal funding sources, making conservation districts and WSCC the “go-to” organization 
for getting conservation on-the-ground, and establishing a WSCC/agency contract system that 
provides the ability for any state agency to accomplish conservation goals through WSCC and 
conservation districts. 

   
Submitted by:  WACD Legislative Committee, September 12, 2013. 
 
Recommend Do Pass by the Legislative Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED. 
 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 124 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-21 
 
Title: Collaborative Agency Program Agreements for Natural Resources Management: EPA 
319 Non-Point Source Pollution Plan for the State of Washington 
 
Problem: 
 EPA 319 funds for non-point pollution in the State of Washington are received by the 
Washington Department of Ecology (DOE) and are distributed by DOE as directed by an EPA-
approved NPS management plan developed by DOE.  No conservation district or State 
Conservation Commission (WSCC) input is sought or received by DOE in the development of 
this NPS plan, in particular as it relates to agriculture and forestry.  Conservation districts and 
WSCC can provide valuable input to the development of the NPS plan and can help target NPS 
319 funds to be applied in the field related to agriculture and NPS water quality. 
 
Recommendation: 
 WACD will request that WSCC and DOE implement an interagency agreement that 
allows WSCC and conservation districts to prepare and submit to DOE input to the agricultural 
and forestry component of the state NPS management plan for inclusion in the state plan 
submitted to EPA for approval under the 319 NPS program.   
 
 WACD will request that conservation districts secure their county governments’ support 
for this request.  
 
 This resolution replaces WACD Resolution No. 11-05.  
 
Submitted by:  WACD Natural Resources Committee, September 16, 2013. 
 
Recommend Do Pass by the Natural Resources Policy Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED. 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 125 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-22 
 
Title: Collaborative Agency Program Agreements for Natural Resources Management: 
Irrigation Efficiencies Grant Program as a model for interagency program agreement for natural 
resources management   
 
Problem: 
 Washington State’s 45 conservation districts and the State Conservation Commission 
(WSCC) are dedicated to working with private landowners and working lands managers to 
conserve water.  One of the most effective tools for accomplishing this is the Irrigation 
Efficiencies Grants Program (IEGP).  Under this program, private landowners and operators 
partner with local conservation districts on voluntary projects that increase the efficiency of on-
farm water application and conveyance delivery systems.  Water saved is converted to beneficial 
in-stream or out-of-stream uses. 
  
 The IEGP began in 2001 as a legislative appropriation to the Department of Ecology 
(DOE) directing the agency to “provide grants to conservation districts to assist the agricultural 
community to implement water conservation measures and irrigation efficiencies…” within 16 
drought critical basins.  WSCC administers IEGP through an interagency partnership with DOE 
(capital budget appropriation pass-through). 
 
 This grant program is an example of the type of interagency cooperation and agreement 
that is needed to meet agencies’ mutual goals, to effectively employ natural resource agency 
expertise, and to apply proper roles in the management of natural resources related to agriculture.  
Other natural resource and environmental program areas do not employ similar model 
agreements, but should.  In the case of IEGP, the program is limited to the 16 drought critical 
basins, but this model should be expanded to address statewide opportunities to improve 
irrigation efficiency.   
 
Recommendation: 
 WACD will request WSCC and DOE to confirm this collaborative model approach for 
water use efficiencies program area for agriculture, and to expand efforts through the IEPG or 
other collaborative irrigation program to include other statewide opportunities to improve 
irrigation efficiency.   
 
 In addition, WACD will encourage agencies to employ a similar interagency program 
model in the areas of water quality, air quality, and other areas of mutual natural resources 
interest. 
 
 This resolution replaces WACD Resolution No. 10-29.  
 
 
 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 126 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-22 (continued) 
 
 
Submitted by: WACD Natural Resources Committee, September 16, 2013. 
 
Recommend Do Pass by the Natural Resources Policy Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED. 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 127 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-23 
 

Title: Mandating Specific Practice Implementation as a Condition for Landowner Participation 
in Incentive-Based Conservation Programs 
 
Background/Problem: 

During the past two years, several organizations and agencies at the national and state level 
have pressed for changes in conservation practices implementation.  This pressure is based on a 
perception by these entities that existing incentive-based programs and services delivered to 
landowners and land managers by conservation districts and partners are not effective in putting 
conservation on the ground, and in achieving desired results to protect natural resources.  These 
entities propose that participants in incentive-based conservation programs be required to 
implement a certain mandated practice, such as a riparian buffer, as a condition of their having 
access to any program financial assistance. 
 

Conservation districts, with our seventy-five years of experience in dealing with private 
landowners and working lands managers, are very concerned about the impact on participation 
likely to result from such an infusion of regulatory requirements into the collaborative planning 
process under incentive-based programs.  Conservation districts enjoy a unique degree of trust 
and cooperation with landowners and working lands managers, because we offer a robust set of 
methods to help program participants address a wide spectrum of natural resources concerns for 
the lands they manage.  Conservation districts recognize that a balanced approach to natural 
resource protection and management is necessary, and appreciate the importance of both 
regulatory and incentive-based programs in helping to foster durable stewardship behaviors that 
meet and exceed compliance objectives.  Conservation districts further recognize that, for 
incentive-based programs, increasing landowner participation is vital to our making progress in 
improving the quality of natural resources. 
 

Conservation districts believe, however, that mandating specific practice implementation as a 
condition of participation would severely inhibit participation by landowners and working lands 
managers in conservation financial assistance programs, and would threaten the effectiveness 
and future availability of financial assistance programs for Washington citizens. Such a loss of 
participation would catastrophically hamper progress in addressing natural resources concerns, 
and would seriously impair the application of incentive-based programs as part of this balanced 
system.  This would leave only regulatory programs to address natural resources management 
and protection.  
 

Conservation districts recognize that the conservation partnership must work collaboratively 
with many other entities concerned with natural resources protection, and identify and pursue 
shared goals with respect to water quality, improved habitat, and maintaining a viable working 
lands economy and landscape.  
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 128 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-23 continued 
 
Recommendation: 

WACD supports a balanced system approach to natural resources management that 
leverages the benefits of both incentive-based and regulatory programs. 
 

WACD recognizes the need to continually evaluate and improve the effectiveness of 
incentive-based conservation programs, and to increase participation by landowners and working 
lands managers in such programs. 
 

WACD opposes the requirement of any specific mandated practice as a condition of 
participant access to incentive-based program financial assistance.  For example, WACD 
opposes requiring a cooperator to first install a riparian buffer practice as a condition of access to 
financial assistance for other conservation practices deemed to be needed under a conservation 
plan. 
 

WACD requests that WSCC and NRCS neither endorse nor accept a requirement for 
mandatory riparian buffers as a condition of participant access to conservation practice financial 
assistance. 
 

WACD requests that WSCC and NRCS continue their support for landowner choice and 
flexibility, and for incentive-based programs that make available to landowners and working 
lands managers a full suite of practices that can be applied to address natural resources concerns 
brought to the their attention. 
 

WACD requests that WSCC, NRCS and other agencies utilize guidance by 
WACD/conservation districts to outline our collective pathway forward to achieve improved 
natural resource protection and management goals through incentive-based programs and 
services.  Such a pathway forward should, at a minimum, identify shared natural resource 
concerns and goals, support outcomes set for natural resources issues, achieve high levels of 
landowner participation, promote landowner responsibility, engage in expanded outreach to 
potential participants and partners, and better target programs and services to achieve measurable 
improvement in natural resources at the watershed and landscape scale. 
 
Submitted by: WACD Natural Resources Policy Committee, December 3, 2013 
 
Recommend Do Pass As Amended by the Natural Resources Policy Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED AS AMENDED. 
 
 
 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 129 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-01 
 

Title:  Define the extent and effect of the Supreme Court Decision in the Lemire case on 
agricultural operations.  
 
Problem:   

In 2009 the Washington State Department of Ecology issued an administrative order to a 
cattle rancher, Joseph Lemire, directing him to take several steps to curb pollution of a creek that 
runs through his property. Lemire challenged the order, which was upheld on summary judgment 
by the Pollution Control Hearings Board (PCHB). Lemire filed an administrative appeal in 
Columbia County Superior Court. The Lemire v. State Dept. of Ecology & Pollution Control 

Hearings Bd., 87703-3 trial court reversed the summary judgment determination and invalidated 
the agency order. The trial court also concluded that the order constituted a taking. On August 
15, 2013, the Supreme Court of the State of Washington reversed the trial court on all counts, 
reinstated the Board's summary judgment order and Ecology’s underlying order, and held that 
Lemire failed to establish that a taking occurred. 
 The Supreme Court decision means that:  
 Ecology’s Inspector determines Substantial Potential to Pollute. Ecology is not 
required to prove that conditions on the property are actually causing the pollution. It is sufficient 
for Ecology inspectors to observe conditions on property consistent with the kind of pollution in 
the water body. Ecology need only to show the substantial potential to violate under the statute, 
which the Ecology inspector's declaration establishes. 
 Ecology is not required to rule out other sources of pollution in the creek. Again, 
under the water quality statutes, Ecology need only show that observations of the conditions on 
the property are consistent with the kind of pollution found in the stream. 
 "Ecology has broad authority to regulate any person causing the discharge of 
matters into waterways that cause or tend to cause pollution." The Court cited the "plain 
language" of RCW 90.48.080 and 020 as giving Ecology the authority to regulate nonpoint 
sources of pollution. 
 They did not need to answer the question of a constitutional taking claim. Lemire 
failed to prove that he suffered any economic loss, or any economic loss amounting to an 
unconstitutional taking. The Court indicated Lemire did not establish that Ecology's order 
actually destroyed his ability to use his land.  

This decision from the Supreme Court will negatively impact agriculture in a number of 
ways including: 

1. Conversion of land that has a history of continuous agricultural activity into non-
agricultural conservation property.  

2. The stakes are high. This could force a rancher, whose retirement is tied up in his small 
farming and ranching operation, to either spend tens of thousands of dollars to implement 
BMPS, give up ranching, or be subject to what will likely be substantial financial 
penalties. 

 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 130 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-01 (continued) 
 
3. Presumably, all landowners could potentially violate the state's pollution laws. All the 

operator has to do is have a state water body on his or her property that is not completely 
fenced off. That is it. Nothing else needs to be proved but those facts.  

4. Ecology does not need to test for a water quality violation, or prove a direct violation of 
water quality standards to initiate an enforcement action. It only needs to prove that 
conditions that create a “substantial potential” of violation exist on the property in 
question.  

5. Non-conforming conditions only need to be determined by the Ecology inspector in the 
field. 

6. Other sources of pollution do not need to be considered. Land management activities on 
surrounding properties may prevent successful implementation of BMPs 

7. If after a landowner has correctly installed BMPs and he has complied with an order and 
the water body is not cured of its pollution problems there is assurance that he will not 
receive another order. 

 
Recommendation:  

WACD work with the Department of Ecology, Department of Agriculture, and WSCC to: 
1) develop a practical definition of “substantial potential to pollute” 2) ensure that that definition 
is applied consistently statewide; and 3) when the Department of Ecology (Ecology) makes 
referrals to a Conservation District, Ecology will assist WSCC to fund solutions through the 
Commission/District system.  
 
Submitted by:  Foster Creek Conservation District 
 
Recommend Do Pass As Amended by the Legislative Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED AS AMENDED. 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 131 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-11 
 
Title: Recommendations Addressing Ecology Letters to Producers 
 
Problem: 
 The spring of 2013, Department of Ecology (DOE) staff traveled throughout the lower 
part of Whitman Conservation District and 7 additional Districts evaluating livestock operations 
that were in close proximity to water ways. Also, the staff marked GPS coordinates on a map 
indicating the location of each operation. The DOE staff selected four producers from each 
District to send generic letters informing the recipient. The letters did not inform the producer of 
vital information; for example: the date the visit took place, what the conditions were at the time 
of the site visit or what was seen. The process created concerns and questions amongst the 
livestock producers regarding how they should proceed. 
 
Recommendation/Concerns: 
 The Whitman Conservation District requests the support of the Conservation 
Commission and WACD in addressing the following recommendations: 
 

1. The WACD and the WSCC should work with the Washington Department of Ecology to 
develop a process to include detailed field assessment documentation with the 
notification letters sent to landowners and operator/tenant. The Department of Ecology 
will contact the landowner and operator/tenant within 3 weeks of any assessment that will 
result in a non-compliance letter to set up a time to view the site with the landowner. 
Department of Ecology will provide an inspection form on the day of the visit to the 
landowner and operator/tenant. The conservation district’s copy of the letter should only 
include notation that the field assessment documentation has been attached to the letter 
sent to the landowner. 
 

2. Resolve issues that have arisen from sending four letters in each watershed area where 
observations were made, letters not necessarily sent to land owners that had the most 
serious pollution issues. 

 
3. Recognition of the technical support and conservation practices that have already been 

completed or are being planned on the ranch or farm. 
 

4. To support coordinated resource management or other locally led processes.  
 
5. Abandon the 2013 letter procedure, restart in 2014 utilizing recommendations from the 

process as outlined in #2 above. 
 

 
 
 
 

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 132 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-11 (continued) 
 
Submitted by: Whitman Conservation District and Palouse Conservation District 
 
Recommend Do Pass As Amended by the Natural Resources Policy Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION AMENDED ON FLOOR AND PASSED AS AMENDED. 
 
 
 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 133 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-08 
 

Title: Utilizing Category 3 Funds to Pool Cost Share Dollars for Providing Financial Assistance 
to Numerous Cooperators When Completing the Same Practice 
 
Problem: 
 Under Category 3 funding, conservation districts do not have the ability to pool dollars 
for multiple cooperators to share when implementing management practices such as cover crops 
and pasture and hayland reseeding. 
 
Recommendation: 
 WACD shall support the use of Category 3 funding from the Conservation Commission 
for conservation districts to pool the money and utilize the dollars for multiple cooperators to 
share when implementing practices. The conservation districts need the ability to request and 
receive funding to provide cost share to multiple cooperators for implementing a single practice. 
 
 For example, 10 cooperators want to plant cover crops for the numerous reasons that the 
practice benefits soil health and protects water quality. The funds would be used to give all 
cooperators a percentage of cost shares as defined in the districts’ current policy for planting a 
cover crop. The funds would be divided by the acres planted with cover crops, not by the number 
of producers enrolled. 
 
Submitted by:  Lewis County Conservation District 
 
Recommend Do Pass as Amended by the District Operations & Education Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED AS AMENDED.  
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 134 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-12 
 
Title:  Request That WSCC Reallocate Category 1 Funding to Districts in Multiple District 
Counties That Are Efficient and Practicing Administrative Efficiencies 
 
Problem: 
 Conservation districts were established using stakeholder developed boundaries with an 
emphasis on grassroots implementation of conservation practices.  The boundaries established at 
the time indicated the stakeholder’s belief that there were different resource concerns within each 
boundary.   
 
 Districts that are located in counties with more than one conservation district within its 
boundaries have had damaging reductions by the Commission in FY14 funding allocations.  
Category 1 funding for those districts was cut by as much as 75%, depending on the number of 
districts in the county.  While the Commission maintains they will not force districts to 
consolidate, this reduction of funds indicates an inclination to do just that.  There are districts 
that share staff and office space which is the efficiency the Commission has indicated they 
desire, but the funding cuts are a disincentive to administrative efficiencies.  The resource needs 
remain the same with or without Category 1 funding for these districts.  What is lost is the ability 
of the districts to act on those concerns.  
 
 In addition, most districts use Commission funding to leverage other funding sources by 
using the Category 1 allocation to pay staff.  Without adequate funding for staff under Category 
1, the ability to successfully apply for and implement other funding sources is lost.  
 
Recommendation: 
 The Washington State Conservation Commission re-instate full Category 1 funding to 
Tier 1 districts in multiple district counties that are practicing administrative efficiencies and do 
not rely entirely on Commission funding for their operations – are leveraging other funding 
sources with their Commission funds. 
 
Presented by:   Central Klickitat Conservation District & Eastern Klickitat Conservation District 
 
Recommend Do Pass by the District Operations & Education Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED. 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 135 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-15 
 
Title: Conservation Budget Development and Allocation Process Improvements 
 
Problem: 
 WACD and WSCC have recognized the need to revise a budget development process in 
support of putting conservation work on-the-ground.  The current budget development and 
allocation process does not clearly reflect linkages between the steps in the process to enable the 
WSCC to employ an efficient, predictable and clearly communicated allocation process.  There 
is a need to improve the budget development and allocation process to allow for proper linkage 
throughout the process.  However, flexibility is still needed for adjustments to respond to 
legislative appropriations, and should be considered in the process.   
 
Recommendation: 
 WACD and WSCC shall establish a budget development process that has a clear linkage 
between: 

 The initial budget development request from the WSCC to the districts; 
 The combined district budget requests into a draft budget proposal; 
 WSCC budget submittal to OFM; and, 
 The WSCC allocation process to the districts. 

 
 The budget development process shall direct the allocation process.  The budget 
development process shall be consistent with the WACD and WSCC budget strategy. 
 
Submitted by:  WACD Legislative Committee, September 12, 2013. 
 
Recommend Do Pass by the Legislative Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED. 
 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 136 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution 2013-16 
 
Title: Conservation Budget Development Strategy 
 
Problem: 
 Funding is appropriated by the State of Washington on a biennial basis for work by 
conservation districts, through the State Conservation Commission (WSCC).  This appropriation 
includes an Operating and a Capital budget, and includes funding for the state’s 45 conservation 
districts and for WSCC in its role in support of conservation districts.  This state appropriation is 
fundamental to sustaining the basic infrastructure that allows conservation districts to respond to 
citizen demand for services, to leverage other sources of funding, and to maintain the level of 
technical assistance, financial assistance and human resources required to help citizens fulfill 
their role as stewards of natural resources. 
 
 Recent years’ budget development and appropriation processes have demonstrated the 
vulnerability of our current budget submittals and source(s) of funding with respect to changing 
economic conditions and competition for state funds.  For the short-term (next two biennia), 
there is a need to improve the budget development strategy to allow for needed and reasonable 
growth in both operating and capital budgets, and to clarify the distinction between operating and 
capital budgets. 
 
 Conservation districts and WSCC need to establish a budget development process that, in 
addition to identifying the actual citizen demand for services, constructs a state budget request 
that accurately reflects the amount of work that conservation districts are capable of 
accomplishing during a biennium towards meeting that demand.  The process should also reflect 
a realistic funding objective in terms of legislative support and competing legislative initiatives.  
Budget submittals are vulnerable to loss of funding or lack of growth due to lack of specifics and 
lack of prioritization, and due to a lack of consultation with legislative supporters about realistic 
budget outcomes, despite strong support within the Legislature for conservation districts.  Budget 
proposals should be prepared, packaged and presented in a manner that works to forge 
partnerships among conservation districts and legislative supporters for particular groups of 
technical assistance services and projects.   
 
Recommendation:  
WACD and WSCC will: 
 

1. Clearly articulate what is needed from the operating budget. The process should include a 
level of district funding to operate an efficient and effective conservation district 
program, should reflect consideration of reasonable potential for growth within the 
operating budget, and should reflect the commitment by the state in funding the 
infrastructure needed to support conservation districts’ role in assisting landowners as 
stewards of natural resources.   

 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 137 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-16 (continued) 
 
2. Clearly articulate what is needed from the capital budget.  Define those projects and 

activities that qualify for capital budget funding, and form the basis for a capital budget 
request.  Establish a process that asks the districts to identify the natural resource funding 
pools, amounts, and priorities in each district’s budget request.  The process will further 
include combining district requests into similar pools.  The combined pools will be the 
basis for the WSCC capital budget proposal.  The combined pools will be prioritized by 
WACD and the WSCC based on the natural resource priorities identified by the districts.  
This process should be clearly communicated to conservation districts prior to the WSCC 
budget request to the districts.  

 
3. Districts should recognize that not all projects may be funded by the Legislature, and that 

some process may be needed to prioritize within and among the funding pools.  A 
competitive process for ranking projects within each combined pool will be established 
prior to the WSCC’s budget request to the districts.  The criteria for the competitive 
process will be clearly communicated to conservation districts prior to the WSCC budget 
request to the districts. 

 
4. WACD and the WSCC shall consult with the Legislature, OFM and the Governor’s 

Office, prior to the WSCC’s budget submittal to OFM, to inform them about the budget 
strategy and to seek input on the reasonableness of the budget request.  WACD and 
WSCC shall seek to retain, as part of this process, strategies to maintain flexibility in 
funding sources and options in response to final funding decisions by the Legislature. 

 
5. WACD and the WSCC will establish this process prior to the next biennium (2015-16). 

 
Submitted by:  WACD Legislative Committee, September 12, 2013  
 
Recommend Do Pass by the Legislative Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED. 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 138 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-17 
 

Title: Consolidation and Budget Issue Separation 
 
Problem: 
 District Governance and structure are currently linked with the budget in the minds of 
some decision makers.  This manifests itself mainly in the discussion surrounding consolidation 
of districts.  This tends to misrepresent the founding principles of locally led conservation and a 
district’s own governance and sovereignty.  While district efficiency efforts are linked to the 
budget, governance should be a separate issue.   This is a current issue related to a 2013 budget 
proviso, but should be a standing position of WACD and WSCC.    
 
Recommendation: 
WACD and WSCC will communicate to the Legislature and other decision makers:  

 

 The locally-led basis for the foundational governance structure of districts, and   
 That while district efficiency efforts are linked to the budget, governance should be a 

separate issue.    
 
 WACD and WSCC should align their existing policies on district consolidation, and 
should incorporate those aligned existing policies into this communication. 
 
Presented by: WACD Legislative Committee, September 12, 2013. 
 
Recommend Do Pass by the Legislative Committee 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED. 
 
 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 139 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-18 
Title: Long-Term Conservation Funding Opportunities 
 
Problem: 
 In 2012, the WACD and WSCC recognized the need to evaluate and develop 
opportunities to secure long-term, stable funding for conservation districts and the Conservation 
Commission in its role in support of conservation districts.  Recent state budgets have illustrated 
the long-term need to find suitable and reliable sources of funding to support conservation.  
There is a need to develop and implement a campaign for long-term conservation funding to 
supplement basic state infrastructure support. 
 
 Recent work by the WACD Past Presidents Task Force (PPTF) and conservation district 
supervisors and employees under the 2013 “20/21 series” of meetings held by Commission staff 
has identified a number of potential candidate sources of funding for conservation.  Each 
potential source requires thorough evaluation and consideration related to feasibility, reliability 
and stability prior to launching the funding campaign.   
 
 WACD and the WSCC will need to help build the required unity across conservation 
districts with regard to any funding source(s) (together with their associated natural resource 
priorities) selected for the funding campaign.  Also, considerable work will be required to 
develop and maintain the new partnerships required to help secure selected funding option(s).  
Additional work is needed to prepare most promising candidate funding options for inclusion in 
a campaign that can be developed and implemented over the course of future biennial state 
budgets. 
 
Recommendation: 
 WACD and WSCC will collaborate to evaluate the proposed long-term funding sources 
and to develop a campaign to secure needed conservation funding.  This evaluation will include 
those long-term funding options identified by the WACD PPTF in 2012 and in the 2013 20/21 
process.  
 
 WACD and WSCC will employ appropriate WACD committee(s) and task force(s), 
member conservation districts (including interested conservation district supervisors and 
employees) and other interested parties and partners to thoroughly analyze and consider the 
funding options. 
 
 The WACD and the WSCC will express their joint support for the proposed funding 
campaign prior to its enactment.     
 
 The WACD and WSCC will report on progress at the 2014 WACD annual meeting.   
 
Submitted by:  WACD Legislative Committee, September 12, 2013. 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 140 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-18 (continued) 
 
Recommend Do Pass by the Legislative Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED. 
 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 141 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-20 
 
Title: Harmonizing Local and State Natural Resource Priorities (with special consideration to 
connection to budget development process) 
 
Problem: 
 During this year’s Conservation Commission’s budget allocation process, there has been 
debate about how best to reconcile the locally-led conservation district process with state 
natural resource priorities.  There is a need for clarity on questions about how state resource 
priorities are developed (with or without district input), how state priorities are shared with 
conservation districts, when information on state priorities is shared with districts as part of the 
budget development cycle, and about the role of Commission overall and Commission member 
agencies in this process.   
  
 The time to consider how local conservation district budget proposals can best address 
state natural resource priorities is early in the budget development process, rather than after 
funding is appropriated by the Legislature.  First, conservation districts should make some 
contribution towards identifying state resource priorities, by providing local resource data and 
other relevant information.  Second, conservation districts should be made aware of the natural 
resource priorities identified by state natural resource agencies in advance of their development 
of budget proposals for the Conservation Commission.  Commission member agencies have a 
special obligation to provide data and other information with respect to their natural resource 
priorities that can be shared with conservation districts.  The Commission should play a vital 
role in facilitating the exchange of such information. 
  
 There is a need to identify to WSCC member agencies the mutual benefits of sharing 
information on natural resource priorities and of collaboration among WSCC member agencies 
and conservation districts in achieving their natural resource protection and management goals, 
such as those identified under the Governor’s Results Washington Initiative. 

 
Recommendation: 
 WACD will request that the WSCC and WSCC member agencies enter into an agreement 
no later than December 2014, to implement the requirements of RCW 89.08.070(8) with respect 
to identifying and sharing information about natural resource priorities.  The requirements of this 
section are: 

Pursuant to procedures developed mutually by the commission and other state 

and local agencies that are authorized to plan or administer activities 

significantly affecting the conservation of renewable natural resources, to receive 

from such agencies for review and comment suitable descriptions of their plans, 

programs and activities for purposes of coordination with district conservation 

programs; to arrange for and participate in conferences necessary to avoid 

conflict among such plans and programs, to call attention to omissions, and to 

avoid duplication of effort. 

  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 142 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-20 (continued) 
 

This agreement will include the following: 
 

 WSCC member state agencies will identify and share data and other information on their 
agencies’ natural resource priorities through WSCC to conservation districts.   

 

 WSCC (including its member state agencies) will distribute data and other information on 
state priorities to conservation districts in advance of the biennial budget development 
process, beginning in 2015-2017 budget cycle. 

 
 WACD and WSCC will encourage and support conservation districts’ input to the state 

resource identification and prioritization process, including watershed plans, monitoring 
data, implementation of practices, etc. 

 
 WACD will request that WSCC member agencies consider and provide agency feedback 
to this request to WACD and the WSCC during the regularly scheduled January, 2014 WSCC 
meeting.   
 
Submitted by:  WACD Natural Resources Committee, September 16, 2013 
 
Recommend Do Pass by the Natural Resources Policy Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED. 
 
 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 143 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-02 
 

Title:  WACD and WSCC work with the Washington State Legislature, the Washington State 
Conservation Commission and the Office of Financial Management to ensure that District 
Consolidation remains a voluntary action of the boards involved.  
 
Problem:   

In May 2013, both the House and Senate 2013-15 budget proposals included proviso 
language that requires the Washington State Conservation Commission (WSCC) to consider 
district consolidation options related to district overhead costs and efficiencies. Conservation 
Districts desire to provide sufficient information to decision makers so that supplying better 
policies will be made.  And better policies will mean better conservation on the ground. 

 
There is often misunderstanding of the roles of counties and conservation districts in 

terms of organization, purpose, funding and governance. Conservation Districts are a state-
subdivision special purpose districts under state law. Therefore the Conservation District fulfills 
a role unrelated to local jurisdictions. In terms of natural resources, agriculture, urbanization and 
other conservation issues, there is nothing special about political boundaries. These boundaries 
are not set using criteria related to natural resources.   

 
A forced consolidated district will lead to a loss of true local representation, leadership 

and accountability. Examples are: 1) a larger district may lose the ability to govern effectively 
with a five-member board; or 2) a smaller district may be swamped by another leading to a loss 
of local leadership; or 3) adjacent conservation districts may be sufficiently different in terms of 
resource needs, customer type, agricultural practices, etc., where one area’s issues will come at 
the expense of another. 

 
Critical local district collaboration will be lost if local ties are weakened. As smaller 

districts grow into county-size districts there will be a loss of accountability to the direct 
electorate. This will lead to pressure to involve county officials with supervisor appointments by 
county officials versus public elections. With increased local pressure, conservation districts are 
more susceptible to becoming general purpose, local government entities rather than the current 
special purpose districts resulting in shifting of funds away from conservation work to general 
purpose government functions. 
 
Recommendation: 
 WACD and WSCC will share information with legislators and others to educate decision-
makers about consolidation as an option for conservation districts.  Consolidation can only come 
at the initiative of involved conservation districts, in response to a shared need for joining 
together and to sustain the locally-led principle or to improve efficiencies and conservation 
services. It should not come from external influence seeking to force conservation districts to 
consolidate, against their will, regardless of the reasons. Neighboring conservation districts 
already share resources even though they have very different approaches to resource 
conservation, based on local knowledge of the board of supervisors.  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 144 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-02 (continued) 
 
Submitted by:  Foster Creek Conservation District 
 
Recommend Do Pass by the Legislative Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 145 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-07 
 
Title: WACD Consolidation Policy 
 
Problem: 

There have been discussions regarding consolidations of conservation districts 
throughout the State of Washington.  Due to political and financial stipulations, there appears to 
be some pressure for conservation districts to consolidate.  This undermines the autonomy 
provided by law for individual conservation districts to operate as separate legal entities. 
 
Recommendation: 

That the WACD membership does hereby adopt and support both in word and in action, 
the consolidation policy adopted by the WACD Board of Directors, and the Washington State 
Conservation Commission is to be encouraged to do the same. 
 
Submitted by:  Skagit Conservation District 
 
Recommend Do Pass by the Legislative Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 146 of 147



 
WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF CONSERVATION DISTRICTS 

 

Resolution No. 2013-06 
 

Title:    Communicating the Work of Conservation Districts with the General Public 
 
Problem:   

1) Districts have varying abilities to communicate effectively to the public. 
2) The general public generally does not know what a Conservation District is let alone 

what it does.  
3) Generally, districts communicate well with their active cooperators. However, the 

procedures and skill sets required to communicate effectively with the general public 
differ.  

4) Districts have long considered it important that they have control over their own local 
messaging to the people in their area.  

5) The variety of platforms of communication can represent overwhelming complexity (i.e. 
Twitter, Facebook, E mail, websites, cable TV, radio, YouTube, etc…  

6) Some communication platform requirements are more expensive than others (i.e. radio, 
video spots) and individual districts cannot afford to develop these resources. 

7) There is enough commonality between districts in the work they implement to warrant 
collaboration between Districts and state level conservation partners (WSCC and 
WACD) in creating effective messaging with the general public.  

Recommendation: 
 Individual conservation districts, WACD, WADE, and WSCC will collaborate on 
communication efforts to create individual yet cohesive messages to engage the general public. 
Individual Districts will have ultimate control over communication in their own locale using the 
methods and materials collaboratively developed. The state level communications will be able to 
effectively focus on broader issues at the state and national level. Because of the ever increasing 
complexity of communication platforms, all parties will assist in identifying how and when to 
use a particular platform. The result of this collaborative communication process will be to 
deliver effective and similar messages as well as receive feedback from the general public. 
 
Submitted by:   Whidbey Island Conservation District 
 
Recommend Do Pass by the District Operations & Education Committee. 
 
RESOLUTION PASSED. 
 
  

03/12/2014 SCC Meeting Packet, March 2014 Page 147 of 147


	March Packet Cover
	March 20, 2014 Agenda
	TAB 1 Consent Agenda
	DRAFT January 16 Meeting Minutes
	Written Comment- Christie True
	Written Comment- Wahkiakum & Cowlitz CD
	Written Comment- Monte Marti Snohomish CD
	Written Comment- Carolyn Kelly Skagit CD


	TAB 2 Policy/Programs
	Pierce CD Appointment for Supervisor
	Ag Conservation Easement Sponsorship for EKCD- Kelly
	Ag Conservation Easement sponsorship for EKCD- Imrie
	Ag Conservation Easement Sponsorship for NYCD- Stevenson
	Ag Conservation Easement Sponsorship for NYCD- Lust
	Policy Updates Memo
	NWIFC Response
	Election Proviso Update
	CD Elections Webinar Powerpoint

	VSP Implementation Status
	2014 Legislative Session WQ Trading Bill
	OFP Update


	TAB 3 District Operations
	District Technical Capacity Group Update

	TAB 4 Budget
	SCC Operations Financial Report
	Non-Shellfish Funding Appeals Report & Recommendations
	Policy# 13-25 Category 3
	Prioritization Process for Projects in CPDS System
	Non-Shellfish Funding Briefing January 2014

	Shellfish Funding Update
	2015-2017 Biennium Budget Development Process

	TAB 5 Commission Operations
	2013 WACD Passed Resolutions Relating to WSCC
	Resolution 2013-04
	Resolution 2013-13
	Resolution 2013-19
	Resolution 2013-21
	Resolution 2013-22
	Resolution 2013-23
	Resolution 2013-01
	Resolution 2013-11
	Resolution 2013-08
	Resolution 2013-12
	Resolution 2013-15
	Resolution 2013-16
	Resolution 2013-17
	Resolution 2013-18
	Resolution 2013-20
	Resolution 2013-02
	Resolution 2013-07
	Resolution 2013-06





